
City Council

City of Valdez

Meeting Agenda

212 Chenega Ave.

Valdez, AK 99686

Council Chambers7:00 PMTuesday, September 19, 2017

Regular Meeting

REGULAR AGENDA - 7:00 PM

I.  CALL TO ORDER

II.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III.  ROLL CALL

IV.  PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

V.  CONSENT AGENDA

Appointment of Susan Love to Serve a One Year Term on the Economic 

Diversification Commission

1.

Appointment of Colleen Stephens to Serve a Two Year Term on the Economic 

Diversification Commission

2.

Appointment of Keith Thomas, Grant Uren, and Lee Hart to Each Serve Three Year 

Terms on the Economic Diversification Commission

3.

VI.  NEW BUSINESS

Appointment to Providence Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council1.

Authorization to Reimburse Valdez Schools for Purchase of Security Cameras in the 

Amount of $257,422

2.

Approval of the 2016 Financial Audit3.

Approval of Change Order #1 to Harris Sand and Gravel, Inc. for Valdez Glacier 

Stream Training Dike and Riprap Revetment Contract No. 1319 in the Amount of 

$64,194

4.

VII.  RESOLUTIONS
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September 19, 2017City Council Meeting Agenda

Resolution # 17-40 Calling on the Alaska Congressional Delegation to Support 

Continuation of Full Funding for Rural Community and Economic Development 

Programs

1.

VIII.  REPORTS

Report: August 2017 Report for the New Boat Harbor Phase 21.

Report: Health Insurance Plan and Review Committee2.

Report: Legal Billing Summary - June 20173.

IX.  CITY MANAGER / CITY CLERK / CITY ATTORNEY / MAYOR REPORTS

1.  City Manager Report

2.  City Clerk Report

3.  City Attorney Report

4.  City Mayor Report

Mayor’s Report - September 19, 20171.

X.  COUNCIL BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

XI.  ADJOURNMENT

XII.  APPENDIX

Council Calendars - September and October 20171.

City Boards and Commissions Approved Meeting Minutes2.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0452

Status:Type: Consent Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/12/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Appointment of Susan Love to Serve a One Year Term on the Economic Diversification Commission

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Appointment of Susan Love to Serve a One Year Term on the Economic Diversification Commission

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Appoint Susan Love to serve a one year term on the Economic Diversification Commission

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

One vacancy for a one year term currently exists on the Economic Diversification Commission due to
resignation.

The City Clerks Office advertised the one year term vacancy and received one application:

1. Susan Love (Professional Services)

Members of the commission shall be diversified to the maximum extent possible and appointed to represent
specific industry sectors of the economy. No two members may be appointed to serve concurrently from the
same industry sector. Ms. Love is applying as a representative of the professional services industry. No other
commissioner or applicant for other term lengths represents the professional services industry.

The Economic Diversification commission is an advisory commission to the city council. It shall have the
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File #: 17-0452, Version: 1

authority to prepare and submit for approval a comprehensive economic diversification strategy for the overall

economic diversification of the community; prepare and recommend for approval reports and plans regarding

socioeconomic data and specific sectors of the economy; review and make recommendations to the council

for approval of strategic plans, plans of work and funding requests of agencies, organizations, and event

sponsors; review and make recommendations for approval on projects submitted for economic development

grant funding opportunities; receive, consider and evaluate public input, opinions and recommendations

regarding economic diversification programs of the city and advise the city council of any findings or

recommendations; and other duties related to economic diversification as outlined in Chapter 2.60 of Valdez

municipal code.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0453

Status:Type: Consent Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Appointment of Colleen Stephens to Serve a Two Year Term on the Economic Diversification
Commission

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Colleen Stephens (Summer Tours & Attractions; 2 year term) EDC Commission Application Sept. 2017

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Appointment of Colleen Stephens to Serve a Two Year Term on the Economic Diversification
Commission

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Appoint Colleen Stephens to serve a two year term on the Economic Diversification Commission

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

One vacancy for a two year term currently exists on the Economic Diversification Commission due to term
expiration.

The City Clerks Office advertised the two year term vacancy and received one application:

1. Colleen Stephens (Summer Tours & Attractions)

Members of the commission shall be diversified to the maximum extent possible and appointed to represent
specific industry sectors of the economy. No two members may be appointed to serve concurrently from the
same industry sector. Ms. Stephens is applying as a representative of the summer tours and attractions
industry. No other commissioner or applicant for other term lengths represents the summer tours and
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File #: 17-0453, Version: 1

attractions industry.

The Economic Diversification commission is an advisory commission to the city council. It shall have the

authority to prepare and submit for approval a comprehensive economic diversification strategy for the overall

economic diversification of the community; prepare and recommend for approval reports and plans regarding

socioeconomic data and specific sectors of the economy; review and make recommendations to the council

for approval of strategic plans, plans of work and funding requests of agencies, organizations, and event

sponsors; review and make recommendations for approval on projects submitted for economic development

grant funding opportunities; receive, consider and evaluate public input, opinions and recommendations

regarding economic diversification programs of the city and advise the city council of any findings or

recommendations; and other duties related to economic diversification as outlined in Chapter 2.60 of Valdez

municipal code.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0454

Status:Type: Consent Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Appointment of Keith Thomas, Grant Uren, and Lee Hart to Each Serve Three Year Terms on the
Economic Diversification Commission

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Keith Thomas (Contracting & Trades; 3 year term) EDC Commission Application Sept. 2017

Grant Uren (Transportation; 3 year term) EDC Commission Application Sept. 2017

Lee Hart (Winter Tours & Attractions; 3 year term) EDC Commission Application Sept. 2017

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Appointment of Keith Thomas, Grant Uren, and Lee Hart to Each Serve Three Year Terms on the
Economic Diversification Commission

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Appoint Keith Thomas, Grant Uren, and Lee Hart to Each Serve Three Year Terms on the Economic
Diversification Commission.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Three vacancies, each for a three year term, currently exist on the Economic Diversification Commission due
to term expiration.

The City Clerks Office advertised the three year term vacancies and received three applications:

1. Keith Thomas (Contracting & Trades)
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File #: 17-0454, Version: 1

2. Lee Hart (Winter Tours & Attractions)

3. Grant Uren (Transportation)

Members of the commission shall be diversified to the maximum extent possible and appointed to represent
specific industry sectors of the economy. No two members may be appointed to serve concurrently from the
same industry sector.

Mr. Thomas is applying as a representative of the contracting and trades industry. Ms. Hart is applying as a
representative of the winter tours and attractions industry. Mr. Uren is applying as a representative of the
transportation industry. No other commissioners or applicants for other term lengths represent these three
industries.

The Economic Diversification commission is an advisory commission to the city council. It shall have the

authority to prepare and submit for approval a comprehensive economic diversification strategy for the overall

economic diversification of the community; prepare and recommend for approval reports and plans regarding

socioeconomic data and specific sectors of the economy; review and make recommendations to the council

for approval of strategic plans, plans of work and funding requests of agencies, organizations, and event

sponsors; review and make recommendations for approval on projects submitted for economic development

grant funding opportunities; receive, consider and evaluate public input, opinions and recommendations

regarding economic diversification programs of the city and advise the city council of any findings or

recommendations; and other duties related to economic diversification as outlined in Chapter 2.60 of Valdez

municipal code.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0457

Status:Type: New Business Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/12/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Appointment to Providence Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Nicole LeRoy_PVMC HAC Application Sept. 2017

Michael Franklin_PVMC HAC Application Sept. 2017

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Appointment to Providence Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Appoint one applicant to serve a one year, one month term on the Providence Valdez Medical Center
Health Advisory Council

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

One vacancy currently exists on the Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council due to
resignation.

The City Clerks Office advertised the vacancy and received two applications.

1. Nicole LeRoy

2. Michael Franklin

The selected appointee will serve a one year, one month term, expiring in October 2018.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0455

Status:Type: New Business Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/11/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Authorization to Reimburse Valdez Schools for Purchase of Security Cameras in the Amount of
$257,422

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Invoices and Checks - Cameras.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Authorization to Reimburse Valdez Schools for Purchase of Security Cameras in the Amount of
$257,422

SUBMITTED BY: Brian Carlson, Finance Director

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: $257,422
Unencumbered Balance: $257,422
Funding Source: 350.9591.58000, Capital Projects Reserve / School Cameras

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve authorization to reimburse Valdez Schools for purchase of security cameras in the amount
of $257,422

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

This agenda item reflects the formal approval needed from Council for disbursements in excess of
$40,000.  The timeline of this item is as follows:

· November, 2016: Discussion among staff, School, and Council, and tentative agreement to
incorporate into the 2017 City Budget via budget revision

· August, 2017: Finance Staff reviews related invoices and proof of School payment, prepares
budget resolution
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File #: 17-0455, Version: 1

· September 5, 2017: Council approval of 2017 Budget revision, which includes $257K allocated
to Capital Projects Reserve for school cameras

· September 19, 2017: Explicit Council approval of school camera disbursement (over $40K)

· September 22, 2017: Accounts Payable disbursement to Valdez Schools

Attachments: Invoices and Checks - Cameras.pdf
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0456

Status:Type: New Business Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/11/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Approval of the 2016 Financial Audit

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Audit Wrap Up.pdf

Basic Financial Statements.pdf

Federal and State Single Audit.pdf

Corrective Action Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Approval of the 2016 Financial Audit

SUBMITTED BY: Brian Carlson, Finance Director

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the 2016 Financial Audit

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The attached Basic Financial Statements, Federal and State Single Audit, and Audit Wrap-up
comprise final deliverables for the 2016 third-party financial audit.  Following Council approval, staff
will make numerous filings, due 9/30/2017, to satisfy state statutes and bond covenants.

For the October 3rd Council agenda, Finance staff will include both the June 30 financial summary
reflecting audited year-end fund balances, and a fund balance review and analysis that will provide
context for the upcoming Council budget work sessions.
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File #: 17-0456, Version: 1

BACKGROUND:

This is the fourth year of the City’s five-year contract with BDO (three years plus two one-year

extensions). This year’s audit included two weeks of on-site work in Valdez, and regular status

meetings with the Audit Committee, including a “kick-off” meeting with staff and the Audit Committee,

arrival/exit meetings each week and a post-audit meeting.

ANALYSIS:

The 2016 Audit contains two findings:

1. Significant Deficiency, defined as a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal

control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention

by those charged with governance.

This item pertains to invoices booked in 2017 for products or services procured in 2016.  (see:

Audit Wrap Up, page 7).  This was the result of newly-hired staff being unfamiliar with year-

end invoicing conventions.

2. Material Weakness, defined as a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control,

such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial

statements will not be prevented, detected, nor corrected on a timely basis.

This item pertains to an error in posting of the 2016 fire truck purchase.

The findings are addressed in the attached Corrective Action Plan drafted by staff, which proposes

improvements to the method of quarterly internal financial statements review, as well as increased

communications to City departments regarding year-end procurement and invoicing.  Staff does not

anticipate that there will be recurring findings, and feels that departmental and citywide operations

will be improved upon implementation of the plan.

CONCLUSION:

The relatively late presentation of documents to Council in no way reflects the timeliness of

Contractor deliverables, which were presented to staff for initial review in early June.   Staff is

satisfied with the performance of this contract, and will negotiate for continued work on the 2017

audit, before putting audit services out to bid again in 2018.

ATTACHMENTS (4):

2016 Audit Wrap-Up

2016 Basic Financial Statements

2016 Federal and State Single Audit Report

Corrective Action Plan
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0466

Status:Type: New Business Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/15/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Approval of Change Order #1 to Harris Sand and Gravel, Inc. for Valdez Glacier Stream Training Dike
and Riprap Revetment Contract No. 1319 in the Amount of $64,194

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Change Order # 1 for Valdez Glacier Stream Training Dike and Riprap Revetment

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Change Order #1 to Harris Sand and Gravel, Inc. for Valdez Glacier Stream Training
Dike and Riprap Revetment Contract No. 1319 in the Amount of $64,194

SUBMITTED BY: Nathan Duval, Capital Facilities Director

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: $64,194
Unencumbered Balance: 310-8060-49542 Emergency Watershed Project - $423,552.75 (Grant
Funds) // 310-8065-58000 Watershed Match - $140,579.45 (City Funds)
Funding Source: 310-8060-49542 $48,145.50 (Grant Funds) // 310-8065-58000 $16,048.50 (City
Funds)

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve change order #1 to Harris Sand and Gravel, Inc. for Valdez Glacier Stream Training Dike
and Riprap Revetment contract no. 1319 in the amount of $64,194

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

As-found survey of Copper Avenue performed by NRCS, preparatory to the execution of the training
dike project, concluded that change in conditions had occurred.

In an email to the City Project Manager Scott Benda, NRCS identified the following quantity changes:
“The quantity estimate for Bid Item 6, Excavation, Unclassified, has decreased 426 cubic yards to a
new total of 10,969 cubic yards.  Bid Item 7, Earthfill, quantity has increased 2,248 cubic yards to a
new total of 19,867 cubic yards.  Bid Item 9, Rock Riprap, quantity has increased 706 cubic yards to
a new total of 16,290 cubic yards.”
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File #: 17-0466, Version: 1

“These proposed changes were necessary due to continuing erosion and other stream changes that
have occurred since the completion of the original design.”

The cost of the change order will be split among the City and NRCS
(City: $16,048.50 - 25% NRCS: $48,145.50 - 75%).

The addition of this change order maintains a contract value below the face value of the grant
funding and City budget allocation.

This change order is necessary to complete the project as designed and is a discovery
condition that did not exist at the time of design.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 1RES 17-0040

Status:Type: Resolution Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Resolution # 17-40 Calling on the Alaska Congressional Delegation to Support Continuation of Full
Funding for Rural Community and Economic Development Programs

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Resolution #17-40

City of Whittier Resolution Urging AK Congressional Delegation to Support Continuation & Full Funding

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Resolution # 17-40 Calling on the Alaska Congressional Delegation to Support Continuation of Full
Funding for Rural Community and Economic Development Programs

SUBMITTED BY: Ruth E. Knight, Mayor

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution # 17-40

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The federal FY 2018 budget proposal titled “America First: A Budget Blueprint to Make American
Great Again” recommends elimination of multiple federal agencies and programs essential to rural
community and economic development.

(Link to federal budget proposal:
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File #: RES 17-0040, Version: 1

<https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/BUDGET-2018-BLUEPRINT/pdf/BUDGET-2018-
BLUEPRINT.pdf>)

The City of Whittier unanimously passed a Resolution in late August 2017 calling upon the Alaska
Congressional Delegation to support continuation and full funding for rural community and economic
development programs, such as the US Economic Development Administration, the HUD Community
Development Block Grant Program, and the Denali Commission amongst others. The City of Whittier
Resolution is attached for reference.

Mayor Knight requested a similar Valdez City Council Resolution be placed on the agenda for
Council consideration, as Valdez and other Prince William Sound communities utilize these programs
and would be effected by the proposed federal budgetary reductions. Mayor Knight will verbally
provide additional background on the Resolution during the Council meeting.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0458

Status:Type: Report Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/12/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Report: August 2017 Report for the New Boat Harbor Phase 2

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: VNBH2 Aug 2017 Report.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Report: August 2017 Report for the New Boat Harbor Phase 2

SUBMITTED BY: Laura Langdon, Project Manager

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

See the attached report for the New Boat Harbor project through August 2017.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0459

Status:Type: Report Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/13/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Report: Health Insurance Plan and Review Committee

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Report: Health Insurance Plan and Review Committee

SUBMITTED BY: Brian Carlson, Finance Director

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City has engaged an attorney to assist in a review of the City’s health insurance plan, the
purpose being to optimize plan benefits and contain costs.

The first phase of this review will be to present a recommendation to Council to either

1) keep the status-quo arrangement,

2) issue an RFP for broker services, or

3) pursue a merger with another public-sector plan option.

Staff recommends a review Committee comprised of the following membership:

· Council Member
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File #: 17-0459, Version: 1

· Employee ERT Group Member

· City Department Director

· Finance Director

· HR Director

· School representation (Board, Union and/or Management)

Finance Staff will manage the process and the attorney engagement. The proposed Committee
review will result in a “next-steps” recommendation to Council.  Staff has contacted the School
Superintendent for input about appropriate School District representation and will report back to
Council as the process progresses.

Finance Staff respectfully requests a determination of which Council Member will serve on the
Committee.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0460

Status:Type: Report Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Report: Legal Billing Summary - June 2017

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Legal Billing Summary - June 2017

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Report: Legal Billing Summary - June 2017

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

June 2017 legal billing summary from Brena, Bell, and Clarkson attached for Council review.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0461

Status:Type: Report Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Mayor’s Report - September 19, 2017

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Mayor’s Report – September 19

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Mayor’s Report - September 19, 2017

SUBMITTED BY: Ruth E. Knight, Mayor

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Mayor Knight’s written report respectfully submitted for Council review.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0462

Status:Type: Appendix Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/12/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: Council Calendars - September and October 2017

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: City Council Calendar - September 2017

City Council Calendar - October 2017

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
Council Calendars - September and October 2017

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Council calendars for September and October 2017 attached for City Council review.
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212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Agenda Statement

File #:  Version: 117-0463

Status:Type: Appendix Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:9/14/2017 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/19/2017

Title: City Boards and Commissions Approved Meeting Minutes

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Final Minutes P&R 5-9-17

Final Minutes P&R 07-11-17 Amended

Approved P&Z Minutes 7-12-17

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

ITEM TITLE:
City Boards and Commissions Approved Meeting Minutes

SUBMITTED BY: Allie Ferko, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

FISCAL NOTES:

Expenditure Required: N/A
Unencumbered Balance: N/A
Funding Source: N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

City boards and commissions approved meeting minutes attached for Council awareness.
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Submit Date: Aug 18, 2017

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Valdez Mailing Address (PO BOX # or HCI BOX #)

Home Address Suite or Apt

City

State

Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Occupation

City of Valdez, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Economic Diversification Commission: Reapplying 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 I am a Current Board/Commission Member 

Interests & Experience

Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

Valdez is my home and I am committed to make it a better place for businesses and residents to thrive. I
am applying for the two-year appointment.

Colleen Stephens

430 W Oumalik St

Stan Stephens Cruises, Inc. Business Operation Manager

Colleen Stephens Page 1 of 2



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

See attached resume.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please mark the industry sector seat for which you are applying (choose one). *

 Summer Tours & Attractions 

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your qualifications to represent your selected industry sector.

See attached resume.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your vision for the economic future of Valdez.

The future of Valdez needs to be one with a strong diversified work force. One that leads instead of
follows other communities. In order to do this a clear plan and direction needs to be developed and
enacted.

Resume.pdf

Colleen Stephens Page 2 of 2

https://boule-us-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/production/answer/attachment/3858982/Resume.pdf


Colleen Stephens      

PO Box 2542 � Valdez, AK 99686 � Phone: 907-831-7321 � Fax: 907-835-3765 � E-Mail: colleen@stephenscruises.com 

Objective 

To positively influence the future of Valdez by participating in the Economic Diversification Commission (EDC).  If 

appointed I would use my knowledge and understanding of the industry that I have grown up in to ensure that 

tourism remains a stable part of Valdez’s economy.  

Experience 

Stan Stephens Glacier & Wildlife Cruises    1978 - Present 

• Currently I am the President of the corporation and am responsible for the marketing, operations and 

employee training and management.   

• Our current marketing plans include participation in the cooperative programs offered by the State of 

Alaska including; direct consumer leads, international missions, travel trade events, consumer trade shows, 

and cooperative magazine advertising.  

• Through the years I have had the joy of working in all aspects of the business from vessel crew, reservations 

and management.  

• At times I have served as the company representative to many organizations around our region including 

the Greater Whittier Chamber of Commerce, Cordova Chamber or Commerce, Greater Copper Valley 

Chamber of Commerce, Visit Anchorage, Explore Fairbanks as well as the Tok Chamber of Commerce.  

Ports and Harbors Commission, City of Valdez    2002 – Present 

• Appointed by the City Council to advise on issues relative to the ports, harbors and transportation issues.  

Economic Diversification Commission, City of Valdez    2014 – Present 

• Appointed by the City Council to advise on areas relative to economic development and diversification.  

Valdez Fisheries Development Association    2017 – Present 

• Elected to the Board of Directors in 2017.   

Alaska Travel Industry Association Board of Directors    2012 - Present 

• Appointed by the Board in 2012 and elected by membership in 2013 to fill an At Large Seat representing and 

advocating for the concerns and needs of the Tourism Industry in Alaska.  

• During my term as a Director I have served on the Tourism Policy & Planning Committee, Convention 

Committee, Membership Committee, Executive Committee, and am currently the Chairperson of the Alaska 

Travel Industry Association Board of Directors.   

Alaska Travel Industry Association Marketing Committee    2005 - 2014 

• In 2013/2014 I have served as the Chairperson for the ATIA Marketing Committee where I have worked with 

staff, sub committees, and the full committee to develop and express the industries recommendations to the 

State of Alaska on the statewide marketing program for tourism. 

• While serving on the Marketing Committee I have also served as the chairperson for multiple sub committees 

including: Travel Trade, International, Web Site, & Public Relations. 



Colleen Stephens      

 

2 

Alaska Tourism Marketing Board    2015 - Present 

• Appointed to the Alaska Tourism Marketing Board in 2015.  Served as this organizations Chair for 2015-Present.  

Valdez Convention & Visitors Bureau Board of Directors    1998 - 2015 

• Elected by the membership in 1998 and have served on the Board of Directors since that time. During this 16-

year period of time I have served as the Board President for 8 of the years.   

• The Valdez Convention & Visitors Bureau is responsible for the promotion of Valdez as a business and leisure 

destination.   

Alaska Wilderness Recreation & Tourism Association Board of Directors  1999 – 2000 

•  Elected by membership to serve a two-year term.    

 

Education 

University of Idaho, BS Resource Recreation and Tourism 1997 

A tourism management degree that focused on the creation and management of tourism assets that work in 

concert with local communities and the environment.   
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City of Valdez, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Economic Diversification Commission: Reapplying 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 I am a Current Board/Commission Member 

Interests & Experience

Keith Thomas

325 Galena Dr

Self Employed Plumber

Keith Thomas Page 1 of 2



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

I have been a Valdez resident for many years. I feel I have knowledge in economic diversification. I care
about my community and the people in it. I believe I will be a valuable asset to the commission. I want to
make sure my segment of the community is represented and have expertise I want to contribute. I am
applying for a three year term appointment.

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

Self-employed for many years as a plumber.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please mark the industry sector seat for which you are applying (choose one). *

 Contracting & Trades 

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your qualifications to represent your selected industry sector.

Self-employed for many years as a plumber.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your vision for the economic future of Valdez.

Keith_Thomas_EDC_Application_2017.pdf

Keith Thomas Page 2 of 2
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First Name Last Name

Email Address

Valdez Mailing Address (PO BOX # or HCI BOX #)
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City

State

Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Occupation

City of Valdez, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Economic Diversification Commission: Submitted 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 Word of Mouth 

Interests & Experience

Grant Uren

453 Tonsina

Samson Tug and Barge Terminal Manager

Grant Uren Page 1 of 3



Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

I enjoy enriching and improving communities in which I live in, and enjoy helping others achieve there
goals within business. I have always wanted to be more involved in community planning, and bringing
positive things to the communities I live in. As former resident of Anchorage this was difficult as a larger
population takes more time to achieve such a seat. Also my family and I have been looking to move to a
smaller town since we started our family, my recent appointmet as terminal manager for Samson Tug and
Barge has made this a reality. I am applying for the three year term on the Commission.

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

Education- UAA business administration, marketing, management, and logistics Work- Small business
owner for sportfishing, construction management for small Anchorage home remodeler, Business
development at Black Gold Express (Trucking) gaining 2.2 million in sales in the first 16 months of
employment Voluntering with the wounded worrior program taking wounded veterans fishing annually.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please mark the industry sector seat for which you are applying (choose one). *

 Transportation 

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your qualifications to represent your selected industry sector.

Formal education at UAA regarding logistics and Business administration Real expierence in Trucking,
Barging, rail, regarding budgets, proposals, gaining market share, and expanding business. Indirect
expierience- former fishing guide related to extensive sportfishing small business owner for 5 years, small
construction management projects, and critical path mangement expierience.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your vision for the economic future of Valdez.

Although new to Valdez (Arrived July 10th) it is the ideal community my family has envisioned to live
within and enjoy. Valdez for me at this time seems to be a place with extreme oppourtunity in many
sectors of transpoirtation with untaped exports within Prince William Sound, and providing imports and
exports supporting the North Slope. Please Note my Address, Phone number, and current employer have
Changed, and can be updated accordingly if needed. Fish this season has taken much of my time to
ensure a high level of perfomance to support the Silver Bay and Peter Pan plants. Please let me know if
anything else is needed.

Grant Uren Page 2 of 3



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Grant_Uren_Resume.pdf

Grant Uren Page 3 of 3
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Grant E. Uren 
10242 Jamestown Drive #C  Anchorage AK, 99507 (907)-978-6263 

Grant_uren@hotmail.com 

Objective: 

I am pursuing a challenging and rewarding career in business management, project management, 

procurement, or logistics which will allow for personal growth, healthy life work balance, and 

advancement by working in unison with an effective group of colleagues and management team.  

Summary of Qualifications: 

I am a skilled professional with creative qualities, excellent problem solving skills, and excel in 

developing and improving team structure. Currently I am engaged as business development, 

sales, and marketing for Black Gold Express. I have developed the market share for Black Gold 

Express significantly since my placement in this position within the Anchorage Market. Within 

the last year we have established a new office, and earned over a two million dollars in new 

revenue for the company with minimal increase in overhead and operating expenses.  

I am a self-starter with the ability to excel as a team player with outstanding interpersonal 

communication skills, negotiation skills, and a positive forward thinking attitude.  

Education and Experience: 

 Big Bend College 

Associates in Aviation, 2005 

 

 Grays Harbor College 

A.A. Associates of Arts General studies, 2007 

 

 University Of Alaska Anchorage 

B.B.A. Business Administration. 2015 

Large focus on logistics and supply chain 

 

Education is essential for my self-value, and personal growth therefore I intend to pursue my 

MBA, PMP, and any other carrier improvement courses I may need. 

Experience: 

I have a very diverse work background including sales, customer service, maritime, business 

operations, logistics, project management, bidding, project forecasting, and budget management.  

mailto:Grant_uren@hotmail.com


  

Black Gold Express- business development, and operations (Anchorage) (2016-present) 

Responsible for gaining market share within the Anchorage market, and statewide. Responsible 

for managing drivers, solving operations problems, attending marketing and networking 

functions as well as generating proposals, pricing, and creating new business ideas to acquire 

customers. Responsible for starting a new profitable branch for Black Gold Express, and 

handling all of the challenges that come with opening a new location in a highly competitive 

market place.   

MTH / Modular Transportable housing - sales and marketing Alaska (2013-2016): 

Responsible for acquiring leads, and gaining market share in the Alaska remote housing needs 

including construction, oil and gas exploration, and remote community needs. Orchestrating 

meetings, providing client detailed information, drafting purchase agreements, maintaining a 

positive customer relationship, and reacting to time sensitive opportunities. Handling all aspects 

of a client’s needs from initial visualization process to completion of purchase orders.  

 Chugach Backcountry Fishing / Fishing guide and small business owner (2010-2016): 

Responsible for coordinating fishing trips with clients from around the world for all species of 

Alaska’s river game fish. Trips ranging from three hour hiking and fishing excursions to three 

day overnight expeditions around Alaska’s Kenai Peninsula. Being singularly responsible for up 

to six people’s safety, transportation, equipment, and overall experience while maintaining a 

high level of enjoyment.  

 Home Depot / department manager-framework building materials (2007-2011):  

Responsible for maintaining the inventory budget, appropriate merchandise numbers, and 

staffing for one-third of the stores floor space. Daily duties including ordering from vendors 

regarding lumber, masonry, insulation, doors, and windows. Also scheduling and developing 

teams for each department during sales hours while maintaining Budget requirements from 

management with hours available.  

Skills: 

Through my personal, educational, and professional career I have developed a valuable skill set 

which allows me to work effectively with all personality types. 

 Extensive education and experience in management techniques, merchandising, 

marketing, resource allocation, as well as effective communication and negotiation 

methods. 

 Constantly assuming and pursuing responsibilities as well as growth of my skills and 

employee identity.  

 Recognized for professionalism, positive mental attitude, commitment to excellence, and 

continually demonstrate the ability to communicate and interact effectively with upper 

management, associates, and customers. 



 

Other Qualifications / Organizations: 

 Daily use of Microsoft office package, office, excel, power point. 

 NSTC – Card Holder 

 Member of the young professionals group within the Anchorage chamber of 

commerce  

 Involved with the Alaska Alliance and attend bi-monthly meetings regularly.  

 Kenai River Guide Association Certification – (2010) Required for fishing guide 

operators  

 Wounded Warrior Project- working with soldiers that have received active duty 

injuries in an effort to rehabilitate, and socialize PTSD individuals. 

 USCG random drug screening program- 365 day monitoring of controlled substances 

in the occurrence of any accident land based or marine based.   

 Member of NAPM Alaska Procurement- Logistics and Procurement association 

 40 hour marine HAZWOPPER certification with SERVS regarding rapid oil spill 

response training. (Expired) 
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City of Valdez, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Economic Diversification Commission: Submitted 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 City Website 

Interests & Experience

Lee hart

490 Resurrection Loop

Levitation 49 Executive Director

Lee hart Page 1 of 2



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

I am obsessed about the economic future of Valdez. I'm alarmed at the state of our local economy and am
confident I can bring fresh ideas and directions for the board to consider as well as looking forward to
helping shape ideas already on the table.

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

Bachelor's degree in journalism. Lifelong communicator, public relations and marketing pro. I have
volunteered on numerous boards, mostly for events in other cities where I've lived. I am an appointee to
the statewide BLM Resource Advisory Committee so I have awareness of statewide natural resources
management issues, priorities and projects.

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please mark the industry sector seat for which you are applying (choose one). *

 Winter Tours & Attractions 

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your qualifications to represent your selected industry sector.

49s mission is economic diversification through mountain sports. Levitation 49 is engaged in winter tours
and attractions in that we host two sports festivals during the winter. The Valdez Ice Climbing Fest and
Chugach Fat Bike Bash. As operators of four local state park units, we are also involved in summer tours
and attractions. L

Question applies to Economic Diversification Commission

Please describe your vision for the economic future of Valdez.

More than any other community in Alaska, Valdez will enjoy year-round adventure travel tourism. New
businesses will flourish to support the active independent traveler and health-focused workforce that will
be attracted to Valdez. There will be a mix of housing available to support all life stages from youth to
retirement. More businesses will be open year-round because the local economy will be more self-
supporting. Valdez will be a hub of outdoor recreation, mariculture, local farm to table restaurants and
locally brewed and/or distilled alcoholic beverages. A conscious effort will be made to foster and support
more artists through public art installations.

lee_hart_visualcv_resume.pdf

Lee hart Page 2 of 2
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LEE HART
Valdez, AK • 303.898.4141 • BrandAmp@gmail.com

  brandamp.com/services/

Marketing & Communications Strategist 

Energetic, versatile and results-oriented business professional with track record of producing extraordinary results through excellent
strategic planning, creativity and accountability. Specializing in clients who seek values-based, ethical, winning approaches as well as
boundless exuberance, unparalleled excellence and gonzo proactivity.

1999 - Present MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS
CONSULTANT

Co-founder and Executive Director, Levitation 49, dedicated to economic diversification through
mountain sports in Valdez, AK. In the organization's first year we doubled participation in ice and
rock climbing fests, launched a fat bike event, launched and hosted a statewide outdoor recreation
leadership conference and took over management and maintenance of four state park units.
Founder of Confluence: Summit on the Outdoors, a leadership conference for business owners, land
managers, and non-profits and other stakeholders in the outdoor recreation economy.
Founder and president of Brand Amp, strategic brand communications. Design and develop
strategic brand-building marketing communications plans, trade relations, community relations,
promotions, and grass roots outreach for domestic and international brands that have included
included Outdoor Industry Association, Collegiate Peaks Geotourism, Chaffee County Visitor's
Bureau, Jackson Kayak, World Kayak, Outlast Technologies, Phenix Ski & Sports, Mammut, Buff USA,
Professional Ski/Snowboard Instructors of America
Instrumental in helping Jackson Kayak to grow to the leading seller of whitewater kayaks worldwide
in just four years with little or no advertising and no sales rep network.
Design and launch nationwide grassroots grow the game initiative for World Kayak forging
relationships with national allies including National Park Service, US Fish and Wildlife Service,
National Association of State Parks directors, President's Challenge and Rapid Media Publishing (US
and Canada)
Grew tourism promotion tax revenues from $200K - $300 in four years. Won awards from the
governor's office for outstanding community tourism initiative and from tourism trade association
for excellence in brand launch campaign.
Experienced strategist and negotiator developing and executing ways to leverage resources  to
create and deliver impactful events on limited budgets. Client examples: Teva Mountain Games, the
Olympics of outdoor adventure sports; Outdoor Industry Association Rendezvous, the annual
professiona development conference for industry leaders in human powered outdoor recreation
industry; Nielsen Media Group Outdoor Retailer Summer Market trade show.
Advocate for adventure travel and sustainable tourism. Guest speaker at conferences in the US and
abroad.

1992 - 1998 Marketing Director
UNITED STATES TENNIS ASSOCIATION

Designed and developed action plans and budgets for multi-million dollar grass roots initiative.
Result: more than TRIPLED the number of new players to the sport in one season
Managed and allocated 300K budget - in-house and outside resources - to support key seasonal and
regional initiatives and execute promotional programs

SUMMARY

Work experience

 https://www.visualcv.com/brandamp
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Responsible for all facets of coordination of external and internal special events of all sizes;
including site bidding, contracts, media, sponsorship servicing, etc.; 100 percent budget
compliance
Hands-on training and experience in working collaboratively with others to develop consensus not
only within diverse groups with dramatically divergent goals;
Success at understanding and looking for creative ways to maximize resources to make events and
projects look far bigger and more professional than what may seem possible on shoestring budgets.

1986 - 1990 Associate Editor
EVERGREEN NEWSPAPERS, INC.

Wrote news and feature articles, edited submissions, designed pages. Primary beats: land use issues
& politics
Colorado Press Association award winner for Best Series: Three-part series on discrimination in a
small mountain town

Regale friends with great yarns from working/sailing throughout the Caribbean and transatlantic; certified ski and snowboard
instructor; experienced adventurer at home and abroad (conversational French and Spanish); rock climber, guppy class kayaker;
stand up paddle crusader, mountain bike/fat bike enthusiast.

Journalism
Colorado State University

Available Upon Request

Interest

Education

References

 https://www.visualcv.com/brandamp
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Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Providence Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council: Submitted 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 City Newsflash or Email 

Interests & Experience

Nicole LeRoy

136 Foraker Street

City of Valdez Administrator

Nicole LeRoy Page 1 of 2



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

I am passionate about fostering health and wellness in the Valdez community. I care about making Valdez
a healthier place and would be honored to be an advocate for residents. I am looking forward to the
opportunity to help shape more efficient, effective, and compassionate medical care in our city. I would
very much enjoy the chance to serve the public in this capacity and I am prepared to represent the needs
of Valdez residents to the best of my ability.

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

I have a Bachelor’s degree in Environmental and Urban Studies with a concentration in social policy. As
an undergraduate, I studied the environmental and human health effects of modern agriculture and the
connection between dietary quality and overall health. Because of this connection, my coursework on
farming practices, pollution, and food availability was inherently linked to the study of human health and
health care. I completed classes in neuroscience, psychology, nutrition, sustainable agriculture,
economics, and environmental policy for my degree program. I wrote my senior thesis on the negative
environmental consequences of psychotropic pharmaceutical residue in water supplies and the need for
viable alternatives to treat depression and other psychiatric disorders. I explored the effects of the human
gut microbiome on mental health and constructed a literature review examining the evidence that high
potency, diverse formulas of probiotics could be clinically significant for the treatment of mental health
disorders, autoimmune disorders, and other chronic diseases. After graduating, I went on to work at the
Omega Institute for Holistic Studies were I became a Yoga Alliance certified Yin Yoga instructor and took
courses in nutrition, Ayurvedic medicine, and stress reduction. While I am currently non-medically trained,
I am scientifically literate and have a general knowledge of common language and practices in
conventional medicine. I am comfortable reading and analyzing peer reviewed medical journals and will
provide an evidence-based approach to all of my contributions as a member of the Providence Valdez
Medical Center Advisory Council.

NicoleLeRoyResume2017.doc

Nicole LeRoy Page 2 of 2
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Nicole LeRoy
nl93830@gmail.com
845.616.2217 

Skills: 
­Writing/editing, analysis, research, content creation
­ Microsoft Suite, Mac OS X operating system 
­Adaptability and effective communication 
­Customer service & administrative tasks  

Education:
Bard College, Annandale­on­Hudson, New York 
B.A. Environmental & Urban Studies 2015
Senior thesis: Ecological Medicine: Pharmaceutical 
Contamination in Water Supplies and the Need for 
Alternatives
Yoga Alliance Certified Yin Instructor 

Experience:    
Front Office Administrator
City of Valdez
July 2017­Present 
Valdez, Alaska 

Responsibilities include directing incoming calls, greeting 
and assisting customers, accepting payments for 
taxes/fees/utilities and miscellaneous bills using Caselle 
Government Accounting Software. Position also assists 
Clerk’s Office with data entry and receiving documents for 
tax appeal, energy assistance and change of property 
ownership. Position requires knowledge of city policies/ 
procedures and maintenance of confidentiality. 

Shelter Attendant                                                           
April 2017­June 2017                       
Valdez Animal Shelter
Valdez, Alaska 

Handled animal adoptions/surrenders, donations and sales, 
received calls/inquires, lead tours and engaged in 
community education. Position required knowledge of and 
care for domestic and exotic animals. 

Omega Institute Wellness Concierge                           
Omega Institute for Holistic Studies 
April 2016­November 2016 (Seasonal)
Rhinebeck, New York 

Utilized Cenium Hospitality Software as a booking agent for 
the Omega Wellness Center. Position required excellent 
customer service and computer skills as well as good time 
management, planning, multitasking, shift leadership, 
problem solving and marketing. 

SWEP Volunteer                                                           

Winter 2016
Tahoe City, California 

Volunteer educator for the Tahoe­based environmental 
group Sierra Watershed Education Partnerships. Required 
public speaking and ability to understand and relay lesson 
material on short notice. 

Teaching Assistant 
Bard College Children’s Center 
January 2015­December 2015                                            
Annandale­on­Hudson, New York

Teacher’s assistant for children ages 3­4. Position required 
effective coordination with other teachers and creative 
engagement techniques. 

Chartwells Sustainability Advocate 
Bard College 
September 2014­December 2015                                            
Annandale­on­Hudson, New York

Tracked, researched and cataloged campus food using the 
realfoodchallenge.org data entry tool. Organized with co­
advocates and reached out to suppliers to collect relevant 
details on production practices. Branded “Real Food” 
initatives on campus and promoted the organization’s efforts 
on social media. Problem solved to maximize Bard’s 
sustainability goals on a budget. 

Museum Docent
Litchfield Historical Society 
October 2007­October 2014 (Seasonal)                            
Litchfield, Connecticut

Provided museum tours, engaged in front desk service and 
handled gift shop transactions. Trained new employees on 
docent duties/ opening and closing procedures  and assisted 
with community education events held by the Historical 
Society.

Office of Sustainability Intern
Bard College Office of Sustainability
May 2014­August 2014  
Annandale­on­Hudson, New York

Acted as student liaison for the Environmental and Urban 
Studies program at Bard. Engaged in community education 
and recruitment through social media, poster campaigns and 
tabling. Hosted meetings and organized events for Bard 
College’s first year Language & Thinking Program and Eco­
Reps. Performed administrative duties (emailing, copying, 
writing meeting minutes, taking calls) to ensure BOS 
operated smoothly.

Bloom Data Collector
Bard Arboretum 
Spring 2013                                                                      



Annandale­on­Hudson, New York

Collected, organized and entered seasonal bloom data for 
environmental indicator species on Bard’s campus. 

Freelance Writer
May 2012    
Researched and ghostwrote ebook on the therapeutic use of 
Theta meditation. 

Council Intern

Red Hook Climate Action Council 
Fall 2012                                                                          
Red Hook, New York

Promoted the New York State Free Home Energy Audit 
Program as a spokesperson tabling at Red Hook Public 
Library and special events. Organized support contacts, 
composed announcements, assisted in outreach and 
community education strategies. Position required the ability 
to drive the initiative forward through effective public 
education and salesmanship. 
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City of Valdez, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Providence Valdez Medical Center Health Advisory Council: Submitted 

How did you learn about this vacancy? *

 Word of Mouth 

Interests & Experience

Why are you interested in serving on a City of Valdez board or commission?

Ensuring quality health care is sustained and continued to be provided for 125 active duty members and
their families.

Michael Franklin

532 Cliffside Court

United States Coast Guard
Commanding Officer MSU
Valdez

Michael Franklin Page 1 of 2



Upload a Resume or Letter of Interest

Please outline your education, work, and volunteer experience which will assist you in
serving on a City of Valdez board/commission.

Member of multiple boards and committees. Commissioned Officer in The United States Coast Guard
with 22 years of service. Earned two Masters degrees one in Emergency and Disaster management and
Educational Leadership. Volunteer at Valdez Food Bank and Catholic Church.

Michael Franklin Page 2 of 2
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City of Valdez, Alaska 


The following communication was prepared as part of our audit, has consequential limitations, and is 
intended solely for the information and use of those charged with governance (City Council) and, if 
appropriate, management of the City and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 


BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International 
Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of 
independent member firms. 


BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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September 14, 2017 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Valdez, Alaska 
 
Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding matters related to the 
audit, that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to your responsibilities in 
overseeing the financial reporting process. On January 20, 2017 we presented an overview of 
our plan for the audit of the financial statements of the City of Valdez, Alaska (the City) as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2016, including a summary of our overall objectives for 
the audit, and the nature, scope, and timing of the planned audit work. 
 
This communication is intended to elaborate on the significant findings from our audit, 
including our views on the qualitative aspects of the City’s accounting practices and policies, 
management’s judgments and estimates, financial statement disclosures, and other required 
matters. 
 
We are pleased to be of service to the City and look forward to discussing our audit findings, as 
well as other matters that may be of interest to you, and to answer any questions you might 
have.  
 
Respectfully,  
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AUDIT WRAP-UP – DECEMBER 31, 2016 


Status of Our Audit 
 
 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2016. Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. This audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged 
with governance of their responsibilities. 
 
 The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable - not absolute - assurance about whether the 


financial statements are free from material misstatements. 


 The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that described to you in our earlier 
Audit Planning communications.  


 We have issued an unmodified opinion on the financial statements and released our report in on 
September 14, 2017. 


 Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the City’s audited financial 
statements does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the audit report, and we 
are not required to perform procedures to corroborate such other information.  


 All records and information requested by BDO were freely available for our inspection. 


 Management’s cooperation was excellent. We received full access to all information that we 
requested while performing our audit, and we acknowledge the full cooperation extended to us by 
all levels of City personnel throughout the course of our work. 







 


4 
AUDIT WRAP-UP – DECEMBER 31, 2016 


Results of Our Audit 
 
 
ACCOUNTING PRACTICES, POLICIES, AND ESTIMATES   
 
The following summarizes the more significant required communications related to our audit concerning 
the City’s accounting practices, policies, and estimates:  
 
The City’s significant accounting practices and policies are those included in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. These accounting practices and policies are appropriate, comply with generally accepted 
accounting principles and industry practice, were consistently applied, and are adequately described 
within Note 1 to the financial statements. 
 
The following is a list of new accounting pronouncements which were adopted by the City in 2016: 


 


  GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This statement defines fair value and how fair 
value should be measured. In 2016 the City was required to disclose the fair value hierarchy of its 
investments measured at fair value. 


 GASB 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local 
Governments. This statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP 
and address the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event the accounting 
treatment for a transaction is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. 


 GASB 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This statement requires local governments to provide 
financial disclosures related to tax abatements affecting the government. 
 


 GASB 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans. This 
statement amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 to exclude pensions provided to 
employees through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that is (1) not a 
state or local government pension plan,(2) used to provide defined benefit pensions to employees 
of  both government and non-government employers, and (3) has no predominant state or local 
government employer, either individually or collectively with other governmental employers 
providing pensions in the plan. 
 


 GASB 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. This statement establishes 
criteria for an external investment pool to qualify for making the election to measure all of its 
investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. 
 


There were no other changes in significant accounting policies and practices during 2016. 
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Significant estimates are those that require management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex 
judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are 
inherently uncertain. The most significant estimates are disclosed below: 
 


Significant accounting estimates include: 


Collectability of Outstanding Accounts Receivables – Accounts receivables from granting agencies 
are generally considered by management to be 100% collectible.  Customer accounts receivables 
(water, sewer, harbor, etc.) are reviewed by management periodically to determine a reasonable 
amount of allowance, based on known factors, past history, and age of the outstanding amount. 


Landfill Closure Liability – Management has estimated the cost of landfill closure and post-closure 
monitoring based on knowledge from the public works department and a third-party engineering 
firm.  This liability includes projected actual costs accrued based on the amount of usage and 
remaining life of the landfill. 


Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) – Self Insurance Liability – Claims incurred but not reported are 
estimated and recorded as a liability in the internal service fund.  IBNR is estimated based on 
reports of the third party administrator and actual experience of run-out claims. 


Net Pension Liabilities – The Net Pension Liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources are estimated based on actuarial information and actual contribution data provided to 
the City by the PERS Plan Administrator.  


 
 Management did not make any significant changes to the processes or significant assumptions used 


to develop the significant accounting estimates in 2016. 


 
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
There were corrected misstatements, other than those that were clearly trivial, related to accounts 
and/or disclosures that we brought to the attention of management. Of these, the following were 
considered significant: 
 
 Reverse double posting of a prior adjustment impacting prepaid expense and capital outlay 


 Accrue accounts payable and capital outlay at year-end for unrecorded liabilities 


 Adjust insurance claims payable at year-end to match ending lag reports 


 Remove stop loss recoveries incorrectly recorded as both revenue and claims expense 


 Remove transfer in and receivable for interfund transfer to be recognized in FY 17 


 
There were no uncorrected misstatements related to accounts and/or disclosures that we presented to 
management.  To our knowledge, there are no other uncorrected misstatements. 
 
All journal entries recorded were provided to management in the representation letter. 
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CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS, CONTINUED 
 
The City reports Valdez City Schools and Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc. as 
discretely presented component units. Those entities reported the following uncorrected misstatements: 
 
 Valdez City Schools - $13,121 – to adjust for stale dated checks 


To our knowledge, there are no other uncorrected misstatements. 
 
In addition, the City reports Providence Valdez Medical Center (PVMC) and Providence Valdez Counseling 
Center (PVCC) as blended component units. Those entities reported the following uncorrected 
misstatements: 
 
 PVMC - $54,250 – to increase net patient service revenue and accounts receivable 


 PVCC - $1,656 – to increase net patient service revenue and accounts receivable 


 
To our knowledge, there are no other uncorrected misstatements. 
 
QUALITY OF THE CITY’S FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
 Qualitative aspects of significant accounting policies and practices 


o We concur with the City’s interpretation and the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles and practices derived from the standards set by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). 


 Our conclusions regarding significant accounting estimates 


o The nature of the City’s operations reduces the need for numerous significant estimates within 
the accounting records. See comment about estimates above. We believe the City’s estimates 
are reasonable in the circumstances.  


 Significant unusual transactions 


o No significant unusual transactions were noted during the audit. 


 Financial statement presentation 


o To our knowledge, all necessary disclosures have been included in the notes to the financial 
statements. 


 New accounting pronouncements 


o The City adopted GASB Statements 72, 76, 77, 78 and 79 in 2016. We concur with the City’s 
decision to adopt these pronouncements. 


 Alternative accounting treatments 


o We did not identify any accounting treatments that did not comply with generally accepted 
accounting principles and standards set by GASB.  
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
 
We are required to communicate, in writing, to those charged with governance all material weaknesses 
and significant deficiencies that have been identified in the City’s internal controls over financial 
reporting. The definitions of control deficiency, significant deficiency and material weakness follow: 
 


Category Definition 


Deficiency in Internal 
Control 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. 


Significant Deficiency 
A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 


Material Weakness 


A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis.  


 
In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements, we reported one material weakness and one 
significant deficiency.  These items are discussed in detail in the financial statements.  For discussion 
purposes, the following items were identified.  
 
 


Material Weakness 


The City double posted a prior year transaction in 2016 to record the 
purchase of a firetruck.  Result was an overstatement of capital outlay 
expense, overstatement of construction in progress, and an 
understatement of prepaid expenses.   


Significant Deficiency Invoices received and paid after year-end for 2016 expenditures were not 
properly recorded as accounts payable in 2016. 
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Other Required Communications 
 
 
Following is a summary of those required items, along with specific discussion points as they pertain to 
the City: 
 


Requirement Discussion Points 


Significant changes to planned 
audit strategy or significant risks 
initially identified  


There were no significant changes to the planned audit strategy or 
significant risks initially identified and previously communicated to 
those charged with governance as part of our Audit Planning 
communications. 


Obtain information from those 
charged with governance 
relevant to the audit  


There were no matters noted relevant to the audit, including, but 
not limited to: violations or possible violations of laws or 
regulations; risk of material misstatements, including fraud risks; or 
tips or complaints regarding the City’s financial reporting that we 
were made aware of as a result of our inquiry of those charged with 
governance.  


Nature and extent of specialized 
skills or knowledge needed 
related to significant risks  


There were no specialized skills or knowledge needed, outside of 
the core engagement team, to perform the planned audit 
procedures or evaluate audit results related to significant risks.  


Consultations with other 
accountants 


We are not aware of any consultations about accounting or auditing 
matters between management and other independent public 
accountants. Nor are we aware of opinions obtained by management 
from other independent public accountants on the application of 
generally accepted accounting principles.   


Disagreements with management There were no disagreements with management about matters, 
whether or not satisfactorily resolved, that individually or in 
aggregate could be significant to the City’s financial statements or 
to our auditor’s report.  


Significant difficulties 
encountered during the audit 


There were no significant difficulties encountered during the audit. 


Other matters significant to the 
oversight of the City’s financial 
reporting process, including 
complaints or concerns regarding 
accounting or auditing matters 


There are no other matters that we consider significant to the 
oversight of the City’s financial reporting process that have not 
been previously communicated.  


Representations requested from 
management 


Please refer to the management representation letter. 
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Independence Communication 
 
 
Our engagement letter to you dated January 20, 2017 describes our responsibilities in accordance 
with professional standards and certain regulatory authorities with regard to independence and 
the performance of our services. This letter also stipulates the responsibilities of the City with 
respect to independence as agreed to by the City. Please refer to that letter for further 
information. 
 


Group Audit 
 


As you are aware, the audit of the City requires the inclusion of financial information for all 
components of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of the City and its 
“component units” as defined by GAAP.  This collection of individual reporting entities comprises 
the “Group.”  Our audit is considered the “Group” Audit. 
 
Included in the City’s audit are the audits of Valdez City Schools, Valdez Museum and Historical 
Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling 
Center. These audits were performed by other auditors. Where relevant, we have included 
information in this report as it relates to Valdez City Schools, Valdez Museum and Historical 
Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling 
Center. 
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Attachment  
 


 Representation Letter  







BDO USA, LLP 
September 14, 2017 
Page 1 of 9 
 


 
212 Chenega Ave,  PO Box 307,  Valdez, AK  99686     907.834.3461 


 
 


 
September 14, 2017 
 
 
BDO USA, LLP 
3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 
Ladies and gentlemen: 
 
We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Valdez, 
Alaska (the City), which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We confirm that 
we are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, 
changes in net position, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information 
that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person 
relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 
 
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this representation letter, as entered 
on the first page, the following representations made to you during your audit: 
 
(1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 


January 20, 2017, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 


 
(2) We have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in the terms of the aforementioned audit engagement 


letter, for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
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and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 


(3) The financial statements include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the 
primary government and all component units required to be included in the financial reporting entity 
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  All funds required to be 
presented as major funds are identified and presented as such. 


 
(4) We have made available to you: 
 


(a) All financial records, and related data and federal and state awards (including amendments, if 
any, and any other correspondence with federal and state agencies or pass-through entities 
relevant to federal and state programs and related activities), as agreed upon in the terms of the 
aforementioned audit engagement letter. 
 


(b) All additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
 


(c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 


 
(d) Minutes of the meetings of the City Council that were held from January 1, 2016 to the date of 


this letter, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been 
prepared. 


 
(5) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or 


deficiencies in financial reporting practices. 
 
(6) There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records 


underlying the financial statements or Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) or Schedule 
of State Financial Assistance (SSFA).  All financial statement misstatements relating to accounts and 
disclosures identified and discussed with us in the course of the audit, as listed in attachment A – 
Schedule of Audit Adjustments, have been corrected, except those, as listed in attachment B – Schedule 
of Uncorrected Audit Adjustments. In our opinion, the effects of not correcting such identified financial 
misstatements are, both individually and in the aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements of the 
City, taken as a whole.  We have evaluated the propriety of the corrected misstatements based on a 
review of both the applicable authoritative literature and the underlying supporting evidence from our 
files and confirm our responsibility for the decision to correct them. 


 
(7) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 


to prevent and detect fraud or noncompliance.  We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment 
of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud or 
noncompliance.  We have no knowledge of any: 


 
(a) Fraud or suspected fraud involving management or involving employees who have significant roles 


in internal control, whether or not perceived to have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
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(b) Fraud or suspected fraud involving others where the fraud could have a material effect on the 


financial statements. 
 
(c) Allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City received in communications from 


employees, former employees, regulatory agencies, law firms, predecessor accounting firms, or 
others. 


 
(d) Instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 


contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements. 


 
(8) We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, 


liabilities, or equity. 
 
(9) The following, where applicable and material, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial 


statements: 
 


(a) The identity of related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and 
amounts receivable from or payable to related parties. 


 
(b) Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements 


involving restrictions on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements. 
 
(c) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable. 


 
(d) Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are required to be 


disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In that regard, all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial 
statements, including key factors and significant assumptions underlying those estimates, have 
been identified, and we believe the estimates are reasonable in the circumstances. 


 
(e) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and other liabilities or gain or loss 


contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, including: 


 
• Pending or anticipated tax refunds, other potential or pending claims, lawsuits by or against 


any branch of government or others; 
 
• Written or oral guarantees, endorsements, or unused letters of credit; 
 
• Unusual guarantees; or 
 
• Labor claims or negotiations. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require loss 
contingencies to be accrued if it is probable an asset has been impaired or a liability incurred at 
the statement of financial position date and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.  
Such contingencies must be disclosed, but may not be accrued, if the loss is reasonably possible 
(but not probable) or the loss is probable but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated. 


 
(f) Commitments, such as: 
 


• Major capital asset purchase agreements; 
 
• More-than-one-year employment arrangements or contracts with suppliers or customers, or 


one-year-or-longer term leases; 
 
• Deferred compensation, bonuses, pensions plans, or severance pay; or 
 
• Pending sale or merger of all or a portion of the business or of an interest therein or 


acquisition of all or a portion of the business, assets or securities of another entity; 
 


(g) Joint ventures or other participations, the detailed transactions of which are not carried on our 
books. 


 
(10) There are no: 
 


(a) Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws or regulations and provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects 
could be material to the financial statements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in 
the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. 


 
(b) Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion and 


must be disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 


 
(c) Restrictions of net position that were not properly authorized and approved, or reclassifications 


of net position that have not been properly reflected in the financial statements. 
 
(11) Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for 


transactions arising on or before the statement of financial position date and have been appropriately 
reduced to their estimated net realizable value. 


 
(12) The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such 


assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 
 
(13) We have appropriately disclosed the City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or 


unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
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unrestricted net position are available and have determined that net position is properly recognized 
under the policy. 


 
(14)  We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements, including debt covenants, that would 


have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. We have also 
complied with the SEC disclosure rules for reporting annual financial information and material events 
to repositories in accordance with SEC Rule N.240, 15c2-12. 


 
(15) No discussions have taken place with your firm’s personnel regarding employment with the City. 
 
(16) We are responsible for compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant 


agreements applicable to us and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. 


 
(17) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted) and 


classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned) are 
properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 


 
(18) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, 


contributions, and general revenues.  Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to 
functions and programs in the statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable 
basis. 


 
(19) In regards to the preparation of the financial statements services and assistance with preparing the 


Data Collection Form performed by you, we have:  (1) assumed all management responsibilities, (2) 
designated an individual (within senior management) with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to 
oversee the services, (3) evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed, and (4) 
accepted responsibility for the results of the services. 


 
(20) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in accordance with 


accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America and we believe it is fairly 
presented.  The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information have not 
changed from the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 


 
(21) Required supplementary information is measured and presented in accordance with prescribed 


guidelines. 
 


(22) With respect to federal and state award programs: 
 
(a) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the 


requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), 
and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits (State 
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Single Audit Guide) including requirements relating to the preparation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) and the schedule of state financial assistance (SSFA). 


 
(b) We have, in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guide, identified 


and disclosed to you in the SEFA and SSFA, expenditures made during the audit period for all 
government programs and related activities provided by federal and state  agencies in the form of 
federal and state awards, grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, 
property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, 
insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations, and other direct assistance. 


 
(c) We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the SEFA and SSFA and related notes in 


accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance the State Single Audit Guide, and we 
believe the SEFA and SSFA, including its form and content, are fairly presented in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guide.  The methods of measurement or 
presentation of the SEFA and SSFA have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement 
or presentation of the SEFA and SSFA. 


 
(d) We have notified you of federal awards and funding increments that were received for awards 


received before December 26, 2014, and differentiated those awards from awards received on or 
after December 26, 2014, and subject to the audit requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 


 
(e) We will include the auditor’s report on the SEFA and SSFA in any document that contains the SEFA 


and SSFA and that indicates you have reported on such information. 
 


(f)  If the SEFA and SSFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the 
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA and SSFA no later 
than the date we issue the SEFA and SSFA and the auditor’s report thereon.  


 
(g) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with in all material 


respects, the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of federal and state awards related to each of our federal and state programs and have 
identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions considered to have a direct and material effect on each federal and 
state program. 


 
(h) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, 


effective internal control over compliance for federal and state programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that we are managing our federal and state awards in compliance with 
federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions that could have a material 
effect on our federal and state programs.  We believe the internal control system is adequate and 
is functioning as intended.  Also, subsequent to the date of the auditor’s report as of which 
compliance was audited, no changes have occurred in internal control over compliance or other 
factors that might significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have 
taken regarding significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance as reported in the schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
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(i) We have made available to you all federal and state award contracts and grant agreements 


(including amendments, if any) and any other correspondence with federal and state agencies or 
pass-through entities relating to each major federal and state program and related activities that 
have taken place with federal and state agencies or pass-through entities. 


 
(j) We have received no requests from a federal and state agency to audit one or more specific 


programs as a major program.  
 
(k) We have complied, in all material respects, with the direct and material compliance requirements 


(except for noncompliance disclosed to you), including when applicable, those set forth in the 
OMB Compliance Supplement and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for 
State Single Audits, relating to federal and state awards and have identified and disclosed to you 
all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with the direct and material requirements 
of federal and state awards, including the results of other audits or program reviews or confirmed 
that there were no amounts questioned and no known noncompliance with the direct and material 
compliance requirements of federal and state awards.  We also know of no instances of 
noncompliance occurring subsequent to the end of the period audited. 


 
(l) We have disclosed to you any communications from federal and state awarding agencies and pass-


through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance 
requirements, including communications received from the end of the period covered by the 
compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report. 


 
(m) Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in 


the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guide. 
 
(n) We have disclosed to you our interpretations of compliance requirements that are subject to 


varying interpretations. 
 
(o) We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct and 


material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial 
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements. 


 
(p) We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence 


with respect to conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period that affect 
noncompliance during the reporting period. 


 
(q) Federal and state program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are 


supported by the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been 
prepared, and are prepared on a basis consistent with the SEFA and SSFA. 


 
(r) The copies of federal and state program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the 


reports submitted or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal and state agency or 
pass-through entity, as applicable. 
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(s) We have charged costs to federal and state awards in accordance with applicable cost principles. 
 
(t) We are responsible for, and have accurately completed, the appropriate sections of the Data 


Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.  The final version of the applicable audit 
reporting package, which includes your signed auditor’s reports, that we will submit to the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) will be identical to the final version of such documents that you 
provided to us. 


 
(u) We have identified and disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken 


for previous audits, attestation engagements, internal or external monitoring, and other studies 
directly related to the audit objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and 
corrective actions taken from the end of the audit period covered by the compliance audit report 
to the date of the auditor’s report. 


 
(v) We have provided views on your reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations.  We are 


responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings and we are responsible for preparing and 
implementing a corrective action plan for each audit finding that meets the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and State Single Audit Guide.  


 
(w) We are responsible for, and have accurately prepared, the summary schedule of prior audit 


findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guide, and 
we have provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by 
federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management 
decisions. 


 
(x) We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain protected 


personally identifiable information. 
 


(23) In connection with any electronic presentation of the financial statements and your audit report 
thereon on our web site, we acknowledge that: 


 
• We are responsible for the preparation, presentation, and content of the financial statements in the 


electronic format. 
 
• If your audit report is presented on our web site, the full financial statements upon which you 


reported and to which you appended your signed report will be presented. 
 


• We will clearly indicate in the electronic presentation on our web site the financial information that 
is subject to your audit report.  We will clearly differentiate any information that may also be 
presented by us on or in connection with our web site that was contained in the published version of 
the financial statements and other supplementary information, but which is not part of the audited 
financial statements or other financial information covered by your audit report. 


 











Debit Credit
1 Prepaid Expense 758,235         


Capital Outlay 758,235       
Reverse double posting of prior year adjustment 


2 Accounts Payable 74,357         
Capital Outlay 74,357           


Accrue accounts payable and capital outlay at year-end for unrecorded liabilities


3 Claims Payable 89,804           
Claim Costs 89,804         


Adjust insurance claims payable at year-end to match ending lag reports


4 Charges for services 356,217         
Claims Costs 356,217       


Remove stop loss recoveries incorrectly recorded as revenue and expense in internal service fund


5 Transfer In 2,335,000      
Accounts Receivable 2,335,000    


Remove interfund transfer and receivable from PVMC relating to FY 17


6 Deferred Inflow of Resources 31,838         
Property Tax Revenue 31,838           
   True up deferred inflows of resources and property tax revenue at YE


7 Deferred Inflow of Resources 17,700           
Special Assessments 17,700         


Correct outstanding special assessments balance in General Capital Projects Fund


8 Deferred Inflow of Resources 4,084            
Other Miscellaneous Revenue 4,084          


 True up special assessments in General Fund
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Debit Credit
Opening Net Position 1,550,583        


Public Service Expenditures 784,245                    


Public Safety Expenditures 758,235                    


General Government Expenditures 8,103                         


To correctly expense Construction in Progress determined to be noncapitalizable in 2015


on the government wide financial statements


City of Valdez
Attachment B - Schedule of Uncorrected Audit Adjustments


12/31/2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Report on the Financial Statements 
 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Valdez, Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Valdez’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 Auditor’s Responsibility 
 Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Valdez City Schools, which represent 93.9 percent, 107.4 percent, and 96.6 percent, respectively, of the assets, net deficit, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. We did not audit the financial statements of Valdez Museum & Historical Archive Association, Inc., which represent 6.1 percent, -7.4 percent, and 3.4 percent, respectively, of the assets, net deficit, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. We did not audit the financial statements of Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund, which is a major fund and represents 3.7 percent, 2.8 percent, and 12.9 percent, respectively, of the assets, fund balances, and revenues of the governmental funds. We also did not audit the financial statements of Providence Valdez Counseling Center Special Revenue Fund, which is a nonmajor fund and represents less than 1 percent of the assets, fund balances, and revenues of the governmental funds. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for City of Valdez, Alaska, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the Providence Valdez Medical Center, Providence Valdez Counseling Center, and Valdez Museum & Historical Archive Association, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  Opinions  In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Valdez, Alaska, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flow thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Other Matters  Required Supplementary Information Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and analysis on pages 6-14, the budgetary comparison information on pages 62-63, and the Schedules of Net Pension Liability and Pension Contributions on pages 64-65, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  Supplementary Information Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City of Valdez’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining financial statements listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.    
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The accompanying combining financial statements listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the accompanying combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 14, 2017, on our consideration of City of Valdez’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Valdez’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.   
  Anchorage, Alaska September 14, 2017 







 


4 


This page intentionally left blank.    







 


5 


Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
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The management of the City of Valdez offers readers of the City's financial statements this discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Valdez for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.  Financial Highlights 
  The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City of Valdez exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $564,983,103. Of this amount, $157,799,931 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  The City’s total net position increased by $18,176,635 for the current fiscal year.  The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $359,058,173, a net increase of $29,339,555.  The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $64,263,094, or 139 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  Overview of the Financial Statements 


 This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three main components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements and additional supplemental information. The discussion section is designed to be a narrative overview of these three main components and following is an analysis of both the government-wide and fund financial statements.  Government-wide Financial Statements Discussion 
 The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the finances of the City, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between them reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Valdez is improving or declining.  The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.  Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Valdez that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Valdez include general government, public safety, public works, public service, economic development, port, harbor, utility, airport, museum, education, health care, and equipment. The City of Valdez currently has no business-type activities.   







City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 


  


7 


The government-wide financial statements include the City of Valdez itself (known as the primary government), as well as two legally separate component units of the City that include a school district, and museum. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. In addition, the City owns a hospital and counseling center. These entities are reported as blended component units. All four entities prepare separately issued financial statements which are available by contacting the respective organizations. (See Note 1 to the financial statements.)  Fund Financial Statements Discussion 
 A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Valdez, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­ related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Valdez can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.  Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as reported in the government-wide financial statements as governmental activities. However, unlike the government-wide statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of unreserved resources as well as the balances of unreserved resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term liquidity or financing requirements.  Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.  The City of Valdez maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Four of these funds are considered major funds in 2016 and include the General Fund, the Permanent Fund, the Providence Valdez Medical Center (PVMC) Special Revenue Fund and the General City Capital Project Fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for these five major funds. Data from the other non-major funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is available upon request.  The City of Valdez adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and its other governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary information for the General Fund and the PVMC Special Revenue Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.   
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Proprietary funds - There are two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Valdez currently has no enterprise funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses an internal service fund for its employee benefit self-insured health plan.  Because this service benefits governmental rather than business type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City does not adopt an annual appropriated budget for the employee benefit self-insured health plan internal service fund due to the utilization and claim volatility. The City limits its exposure to excessive claims expense through the use of stop loss reinsurance. The Valdez City School District also participates in the health plan.   Fiduciary funds - This category of fund is to account for those assets that are held in trust and so do not support the government’s other activities. The City does not currently report any fiduciary funds.   Notes and Other Information Discussion 
 Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.   Government-wide Financial Statements Analysis 
 Statement of Net Position  As noted earlier, the trend of net position changes may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $564,983,103 at the close of 2016. Historically, the largest portion of the net position of the City have been from capital assets, yet in recent years the total restricted and unreserved balances have become a larger percentage of the net position of the City. This is primarily a result of growth of the Valdez Permanent Fund.  The City uses its capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The net investment in capital assets of the City reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that remains outstanding, adjusted for debt issued but not yet spent (e.g. unspent bond proceeds). Although the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The following reflects the condensed statement of net position for 2016 and 2015.    
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 Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
  Current and other assets $ 370,353,153 $ 371,303,444 Long-term 243,071,502 231,588,785 
  Total assets 613,424,655 602,892,229   Deferred outflows of resources 3,473,503 1,728,174 
  Total Assets And Deferred Outflows Of Resources $ 616,898,158 $ 604,620,403 
  Current liabilities $ 10,248,662 $ 15,675,709 Long-term 41,444,199 41,896,570 
  Total liabilities 51,692,861 57,572,279   Deferred inflows of resources 222,194 241,656 
  Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 51,915,055 57,813,935 
  Net position:  Net investment in capital assets 221,805,299 216,732,508 Restricted 185,377,873 182,827,954 Unrestricted 157,799,931 147,246,006 
  Total net position 564,983,103 546,806,468 
  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources  And Net Position $ 616,898,158 $ 604,620,403 
 Of the $564,983,103 total net position; $221,805,299 (39 percent) is invested in capital assets; $185,377,873 (33 percent) is restricted and mostly comprised of investments in the Permanent Fund; the remaining balance of 157,799,931 (28 percent) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.    
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Statement of Activities  The following condensed table of changes in net position displays the revenues and expenses for 2016 and 2015.  Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
  Revenues:  Program revenues:  Charges for services $ 21,622,378 $ 20,519,110 Operating grants and contributions 3,198,499 3,505,424 Capital grants and contributions 963,249 2,184,961 General revenues:  Property and hotel taxes 44,125,898 49,222,652 Payment in lieu of taxes 732,147 739,897 Grants and entitlements not restricted to a specific purpose 1,733,382 2,064,735 Investment income  14,008,277 2,647,204 TAPS litigation settlement, net 7,281,209 25,523,709 Other 603,333 158,379 
Total revenues 94,268,372 106,566,071 
  Expenses:  General government 17,606,201 9,538,535 Public safety 6,661,312 5,366,076 Public works 4,675,892 6,412,149 Public service 5,946,019 4,302,678 Economic development 1,202,592 1,110,219 Port  2,356,709 2,496,735 Harbor 1,911,548 2,348,194 Utility 1,881,457 2,246,513 Airport 332,413 315,881 Museum 455,000 475,000 Education 15,868,253 14,344,468 Hospital and health care 15,009,695 13,280,396 Interest on long-term debt 2,184,646 626,753 
Total expenses 76,091,737 62,863,597 
  Change in net position 18,176,635 43,702,474   Net Position, beginning of year 546,806,468 503,103,994 
  Net Position, end of year $ 564,983,103 $ 546,806,468 
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Governmental activities increased the net position of the City of Valdez by $18,176,635 in fiscal year 2016. This year's increase is lower than the prior year increase of $43,702,474.  Key elements of this decrease are:  • $18.2 million in decrease in revenues due to the TAPS litigation settlement agreement.    $11.3 million increase in investment income, which is concentrated primarily in the Permanent Fund, and reflects capital market trends.  • Overall increase of expenses of $13.2 million, due to TAPS litigation settlement and increases in funding provided for education and healthcare. • $1.2 million reduction in other capital grants and contributions.   • $5.1 million reduction in property taxes.    Fund Financial Analysis 
 As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  Governmental funds - The focus of the governmental funds of the City of Valdez is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and remaining balances at year end. Unassigned resources are those resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in assessing the financing requirements of the City of Valdez. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's ability to meet the expenditures of the current period.  As of the end of the 2016 fiscal year, the governmental funds of the City reported combined ending fund balances of $359,058,173 a combined net increase of $29,339,555 in comparison to the beginning of the year. $63,478,094 or 18 percent of this total amount constitutes unassigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance constitutes monies that can be designated by the City Council for further expenditures. The remainder of fund balance is restricted, nonspendable, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been dedicated to some other purpose: liquidate contracts of the prior period; pay debt service; generate income for the growth of the Permanent Fund; provide working capital;, or for a variety of other purposes.  A summary of governmental funds and fund balances follows:  Total Fund Balance
 General $ 102,599,257Permanent 182,738,633PVMC 10,088,154General City Capital Project Fund 44,209,897Other funds 19,422,232
  $ 359,058,173
 The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City of Valdez. At the end of the 2016 fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $64,263,094 while total fund balance was $102,599,257.  As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the sum of unassigned fund balance to total expenditures. This sum represents 139 percent of total General Fund expenditures, and 96 percent of the General Fund expenditures plus operating transfers out.  
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The City’s General Fund’s fund balance increased by $22,040,654 during the 2016 fiscal year.  The General Fund transferred $20,503,184 out to fund capital projects, operating subsidies and debt service in other funds.  The Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund had a total fund balance of $10,088,154. This was an increase of $489,604 as a result of increased charges for services over the previous year.  The Permanent Fund had a total fund balance of $182,738,633, all of which is reported as restricted investments in accordance with the City Charter. The fund balance increased by $9,982,958. Pursuant to City Code, the City appropriated 1.5% of the beginning fund balance, or $2,606,458, for general government operations. Investment income for the year was $12,861,701. The increase in earnings mirrors the year-over-year performance of broader capital market indices.    The General City Capital Project Fund’s fund balance decreased by $14,774,835, due to capital outlay expenditures exceeding revenues recognized in the current year.   General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 The net change from the original budget and final amended budget represented a $31,569,199 increase in revenues and an increase of $34,114,444 in expenditures. Net other financing sources and uses decreased by $3,052,881. Budget changes were done throughout the year by council resolution and can be briefly summarized as follows:  • $32,959,242 increase in revenues related to the finalization of TAPS litigation settlement proceeds • $34,114,444 increase in total expenditures due to budgeted capital expenditures and TAPS litigation settlement costs. • $12,909,960 increase in general government expenditures. • $3,597,409 increase to public works. • $16,213,044 increase in capital outlay.   
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 Capital assets - The investment in capital assets for the City of Valdez governmental activities as of December 31, 2016 amounts to $243,026,355 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment, construction work-in­progress, sewer and water treatment facilities and roads. The total net increase in the City's investments in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $11,437,570.  Major capital asset events for the 2016 fiscal year included the following:   Ongoing port and harbor improvement  Museum and library Roof replacement  High School HVAC replacement  Sewer improvements  Flood mitigation  Road construction and beautification  The following table displays the capital assets (net of depreciation) for the current year.   Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
  Land $ 15,923,570 $ 15,923,570 Buildings 99,413,339 101,834,268 Improvements other than buildings 66,741,157 68,085,429 Equipment 11,361,892 10,912,903 Construction in progress 49,586,397 34,832,615 
   $ 243,026,355 $ 231,588,785 
 Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.   Long-term debt - At the end of the 2016 fiscal year, the City of Valdez had ending bonded debt principal outstanding of $20,865,000, plus unamortized bond premiums of $2,125,325. In 2016, the City finalized the repayment terms of its Alaska Clean Water Loan.  Total debt outstanding on the loan at December 31, 2016 was $598,340.  In addition in 2016 the city recognizes a liability of $1,403,561 for accrued leave and $17,065,650 for its share of the statewide PERS net pension liability.  Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements.     
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 Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 • According to the Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development, the Unemployment rate for the Valdez-Cordova census region is 8.2 percent, which is a 0.4 percent decrease from 2015, though higher than the statewide rate of 6.6 percent.  In March of 2016, the State of Alaska, the TAPS owners, and the impacted taxing jurisdictions along the TAPS route agreed to a five-year fixed TAPS value, through 2020, of $8 billion.  The parties also agreed to a revised allocation of value among the taxing jurisdictions resulting in Valdez tax revenues reflecting an equivalent $8.5 billion valuation.  These factors were considered in preparing and revising the City's budget for the 2017 year.  Requests for Information 
 This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the City of Valdez for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City of Valdez Finance Director, PO Box 307, Valdez, Alaska, 99686. 
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Exhibit A-1


Primary 
Government


Valdez
Museum and


Valdez Historical
Governmental City Archive


December 31, 2016 Activities Schools Association, Inc.
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
  Cash and investments 361,570,373$   3,995,535$     159,788$          
  Receivables, net of allowance for 
    uncollectible accounts:
      Property taxes 567,308           -                    -                       
      Grants and shared revenues 887,798           -                    -                       
      Accounts 3,407,157        207,384         150                   
      Assessments 17,700             -                    -                       
      Accrued interest 631,231           -                    -                       
  Inventory -                      35,887           22,398              
  Prepaid items 252,346           -                    -                       
  Other current assets 452,000           -                    -                       
  Restricted cash and investments:
    Unspent bond proceeds 2,367,609        -                    -                       
    Debt reserve accounts 199,631           -                    -                       
Total Current Assets 370,353,153     4,238,806       182,336            
Noncurrent Assets
  Assessments 45,147             -                    -                       
  Capital assets not being depreciated 65,509,967       -                    74,227              
  Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 177,516,388     339,408         42,421              
Total Noncurrent Assets 243,071,502     339,408         116,648            
Total Assets 613,424,655     4,578,214       298,984            
Deferred Outflows of Resources - pension related 3,473,503        1,418,951       -                       


Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 616,898,158$   5,997,165$     298,984$          


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.


Statement of Net Position
City of Valdez, Alaska
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Exhibit A-1, continued


Primary 
Government


Valdez
Museum and


Valdez Historical
Governmental City Archive


December 31, 2016 Activities Schools Association, Inc.
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Liabilities
  Current Liabilities
    Accounts payable 5,312,295$        13,150$         13,229$            
    Accrued payroll liabilities 1,437,616          893,953         11,384              
    Health claims payable 332,316             -                   -                      
    Customer deposits 45,596              -                   -                      
    Other liabilities 21,000              -                   -                      
    Unearned revenue 46,225              28,651           24,114              
    Due to student groups -                       218,136         -                      
    Accrued interest payable 82,738              -                   -                      
    Due within one year:
       Accrued leave 750,000             33,625           17,266              
       Bonds payable 2,195,000          -                   -                      
       Loans payable 25,876              -                   -                      
  Total Current Liabilities 10,248,662        1,187,515      65,993              
  Long-term Liabilities:
    Accrued leave 653,561             -                   -                      
    Bonds payable, including unamortized premium ($2,125,325) 20,795,325        -                   -                      
    Loans payable 572,464             -                   -                      
    Landfill closure and post-closure costs payable 2,357,199          -                   -                      
    Net pension liability 17,065,650        8,055,660      -                      
  Total Long-term Liabilities 41,444,199        8,055,660      -                      
 
Total Liabilities 51,692,861        9,243,175      65,993              
Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Pension related 190,226             153,749         -                      
  Prepaid taxes 31,968              -                   -                      
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 222,194             153,749         -                      
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 51,915,055        9,396,924      65,993              
Net Position
  Net investment in capital assets 221,805,299      339,408         116,648            
  Restricted:
    Permanent fund 182,738,633      -                   -                      
    Capital projects 2,367,609          -                   -                      
    Debt service 199,631             -                   -                      
    Capital acquisitions 72,000              -                   -                      
    Projects and displays -                       -                   48,547              
  Unrestricted (deficit) 157,799,931      (3,739,167)     67,796              
Total Net Position 564,983,103      (3,399,759)     232,991            
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 616,898,158$     5,997,165$     298,984$           


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit A-2


Primary
Government


Operating Capital Valdez Museum
Charges Grants and Grants and Govern- Valdez and Historical


for Contri- Contri- mental City Archive
Year Ended December 31, 2016 Expenses Services butions butions Activities Schools Association, Inc.
Primary Government
General government 17,606,201$          206,388$               93,932$                 -$                         (17,305,881)$         -$                         -$                         
Public safety 6,661,312              56,393                  492,895                 3,119                    (6,108,905)             -                           -                           
Public works 4,675,892              183,543                 76,669                  175,210                 (4,240,470)             -                           -                           
Public services 5,946,019              264,583                 70,677                  28,339                  (5,582,420)             -                           -                           
Economic development 1,202,592              -                           -                           -                           (1,202,592)             -                           -                           
Port 2,356,709              435,880                 9,952                    -                           (1,910,877)             -                           -                           
Harbor 1,911,548              736,779                 543,914                 756,581                 125,726                 -                           -                           
Utility 1,881,457              1,095,605              12,163                  -                           (773,689)               -                           -                           
Airport 332,413                 130,677                 3,317                    -                           (198,419)               -                           -                           
Museum 455,000                 -                           -                           -                           (455,000)               -                           -                           
Education 15,868,253            3,097,597              1,555,280              -                           (11,215,376)           -                           -                           
Hospital and healthcare 15,009,695            15,414,933            339,700                 -                           744,938                 -                           -                           
Unallocated interest 2,184,646              -                           -                           -                           (2,184,646)             -                           -                           
Total Primary Government 76,091,737$          21,622,378$          3,198,499$            963,249$               (50,307,611)           -                           -                           
Component Unit - School District 18,300,014$          111,494$               4,129,141$            125,000$               -                           (13,934,379)           -                           
Component Unit - Museum 662,436$               96,255$                 84,808$                 -$                         -                           -                           (481,373)               


General Revenues
  Taxes 44,125,898            -                           -                           
  Payments in lieu of taxes 732,147                 -                           -                           
  Contributions from primary government -                           8,904,591              455,000                 
  Grants and entitlements not restricted
    to a specific purpose 1,733,382              4,735,699              -                           
  Investment income 14,008,277            9,428                    796                       
  TAPS litigation settlement 7,281,209              -                           -                           
  Other 603,333                 132,675                 4,606                    
Total General Revenues 68,484,246            13,782,393            460,402                 
Change in Net Position 18,176,635            (151,986)               (20,971)                 
Net Position (Deficit) beginning of year 546,806,468          (3,247,773)             253,962                 
Net Position (Deficit) end of year 564,983,103$         (3,399,759)$           232,991$               


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit B-1


Providence
Valdez Medical


Center General City Total
General Permanent Special Revenue Capital Project Nonmajor Governmental


December 31, 2016 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments 105,227,394$      182,634,043$      10,598,000$        41,514,052$        18,677,687$        358,651,176$      
Receivables, net:
  Property taxes 567,308              -                         -                         -                         -                         567,308              
  Assessments 2,018                  -                         -                         60,829                -                         62,847                
  Grants and shared revenues 186,276              -                         -                         164,070              537,452              887,798              
  Accounts 370,820              29                      2,570,000           175,000              291,308              3,407,157           
  Accrued interest 127,347              170,585              -                         289,829              35,381                623,142              
Prepaid items 184,329              -                         -                         -                         68,017                252,346              
Other -                         -                         452,000              -                         -                         452,000              
Restricted cash and investments:
  Unspent bond proceeds -                         -                         -                         2,367,609           -                         2,367,609           
  Debt reserve accounts -                         -                         -                         -                         199,631              199,631              
Total Assets 106,665,492$      182,804,657$      13,620,000$        44,571,389$        19,809,476$        367,471,014$      
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances 
Liabilities
  Accounts payable 2,797,366$         66,024$              205,000$            300,663$            223,242$            3,592,295$         
  Accrued payroll liabilities 623,616              -                         796,000              -                         18,000                1,437,616           
  Payable to Providence Health & Services -                         -                         1,651,000           -                         69,000                1,720,000           
  Customer deposits 29,746                -                         -                         -                         15,850                45,596                
  Unearned revenue 13,213                -                         -                         -                         33,012                46,225                
  Other 1,000                  -                         20,000                -                         -                         21,000                
Total Liabilities 3,464,941           66,024                2,672,000           300,663              359,104              6,862,732           
Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Prepaid taxes 31,968                -                         -                         -                         -                         31,968                
  Unavailable revenues:
    Patient service revenue -                         -                         859,846              -                         28,140                887,986              
    Deferred taxes and assessments 569,326              -                         -                         60,829                -                         630,155              
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 601,294              -                         859,846              60,829                28,140                1,550,109           
Fund Balances
  Nonspendable 184,329              -                         -                         -                         68,017                252,346              
  Restricted -                         182,738,633        72,000                2,367,609           199,631              185,377,873        
  Committed 347,455              -                         -                         1,684,652           -                         2,032,107           
  Assigned 37,804,379         -                         10,016,154         40,157,636         19,154,584         107,132,753        
  Unassigned 64,263,094         -                         -                         -                         -                         64,263,094         
Total Fund Balances 102,599,257        182,738,633        10,088,154         44,209,897         19,422,232         359,058,173        
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
  of Resources and Fund Balances 106,665,492$      182,804,657$      13,620,000$        44,571,389$        19,809,476$        367,471,014$      


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit B-2


Total fund balances for governmental funds 359,058,173$    
Total net position reported for governmental activities in the
  Statement of Net Position is different because:
    Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
      resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.  These 
      assets consist of:
         Land and land improvments 15,923,570$      
         Buildings 126,039,165      
         Improvements other than buildings 141,591,518      
         Equipment 27,413,332        
         Construction in progress 49,586,397        
         Accumulated depreciation (117,527,627)     
    Total capital assets 243,026,355      
    Other noncurrent assets are not available to pay for current period
      expenditures and therefore are shown as deferred inflows of resources
      in the fund financial statements.  These assets consist of:
         Patient accounts receivable 887,986             
         Deliquent property tax receivables 567,308             
         Special assessments not yet due 62,847              
    Total noncurrent assets 1,518,141         
    An internal service fund is used by the City to charge the costs of certain
      activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.  The assets and
      liabilities of the internal service fund are included in the governmental
      activities in the Statement of Net Position. 2,594,970         
    Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, related accrued interest, 
      and accrued leave are not due and payable in the current period and 
      therefore are not reported as fund liabilities.  These liabilities consist of:
         Bonds payable, including unamortized premium (22,990,325)      
         Accrued interest (82,738)             
         Loan payable (598,340)           
         Landfill closure costs (2,357,199)        
         Accrued leave (1,403,561)        
         Net pension liability (17,065,650)      
    Total long-term liabilities (44,497,813)      
     Certain changes in net pension liabilities are deferred rather than recognized
        immediately. These items are amortized over time.
         Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,473,503         
         Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (190,226)           
    Total deferred pension items 3,283,277         
Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 564,983,103$    


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit B-3


GF 607                  CP


Providence
Valdez Medical


Center General City Total
General Permanent Special Revenue Capital Project Nonmajor Governmental


Year Ended December 31, 2016 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues


Taxes and assessments 44,097,790$    -$                      -$                      17,700$            -$                    44,115,490$      
TAPS litigation settlement 32,796,418      -                        -                       -                       -                      32,796,418        
Licenses and permits 2,632              -                        -                       -                       -                      2,632                
Fines and forfeitures 16,538             -                        -                       355                   7,987               24,880              
Charges for services 234,293           -                        14,872,604        -                       1,878,581         16,985,478        
Sales and leases 461,642           -                        -                       -                       873,936            1,335,578         
Contributions and donations 28,321             -                        -                       -                       -                      28,321              
Investment income 266,891           12,861,701         -                       755,819            100,144            13,984,555        
Other 564,250           14,666               188,000             -                       109,083            875,999            
Intergovernmental:


State of Alaska 1,167,840        -                        -                       784,920            2,470,727         4,423,487         
Federal sources 2,065,752        -                        -                       -                       -                      2,065,752         


Total Revenues 81,702,367      12,876,367         15,060,604        1,558,794         5,440,458         116,638,590      
Expenditures


Current:
General government 16,355,146      286,951             -                       -                       -                      16,642,097        
Public safety 4,730,701        -                        -                       -                       -                      4,730,701         
Public works 5,574,666        -                        -                       -                       -                      5,574,666         
Public Services 4,051,703        -                        -                       -                       -                      4,051,703         
Economic development 1,208,437        -                        -                       -                       -                      1,208,437         
Port -                     -                        -                       -                       682,319            682,319            
Harbor -                     -                        -                       -                       1,029,237         1,029,237         
Utility -                     -                        -                       -                       1,210,364         1,210,364         
Airport -                     -                        -                       -                       243,810            243,810            
Museum 455,000           -                        -                       -                       -                      455,000            
Education 11,401,554      -                        -                       -                       -                      11,401,554        
Hospital and healthcare 29,972             -                        14,571,000        -                       765,436            15,366,408        


Debt service:
Principal -                     -                        -                       -                       2,135,000         2,135,000         
Interest -                     -                        -                       -                       2,252,950         2,252,950         


Capital outlay 2,340,674        -                        -                       18,149,325        -                      20,489,999        
Total Expenditures 46,147,853      286,951             14,571,000        18,149,325        8,319,116         87,474,245        
Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures 35,554,514      12,589,416         489,604             (16,590,531)       (2,878,658)       29,164,345        
Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Proceeds from sale of capital assets 175,210           -                        -                       -                       -                      175,210            
Transfers in 6,814,114        -                        -                       2,815,696         17,687,488       27,317,298        
Transfers out (20,503,184)     (2,606,458)         -                       (1,000,000)        (3,207,656)       (27,317,298)       


Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (13,513,860)     (2,606,458)         -                       1,815,696         14,479,832       175,210            
Net Change in Fund Balances 22,040,654      9,982,958          489,604             (14,774,835)       11,601,174       29,339,555        
Fund Balances, beginning of year 80,558,603      172,755,675       9,598,550          58,984,732        7,821,058         329,718,618      
Fund Balances, end of year 102,599,257$   182,738,633$     10,088,154$      44,209,897$      19,422,232$     359,058,173$    


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit B-4


Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 29,339,555$    
The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
  Statement of Activities is different because:
      Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 
        Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
        useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
                    Capital outlay 19,446,864$   
                    Depreciation (8,009,294)     


11,437,570     
      Governmental funds only report the revenues for sale of assets to the extent proceeds
        are received from the sale.  In the Statement of Activities, a gain or loss is 
        reported for each sale.  This is the net effect of transactions involving capital assets.
                    Cost of assets sold (307,513)        
                    Accumulated depreciation of assets sold 307,513         


-                    
      Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
        are not reported as revenues in the funds.  This is the amount of change in 
        unavailable revenues. (25,586,588)    
      The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds and notes) provides current
        financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of principal of 
        long-term debt consumes current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither
        transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds do
        not report the accrual of interest expense on debt when it is not payable from
        currently available resources.
                    Principal payments 2,135,000      
                    Increase in accrued interest (43,555)         
                    Decrease in unamortized bond premium 111,859         


2,203,304       
      Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
        financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
        funds.
                    Decrease in landfill closure and post-closure costs payable 3,058,247      
                    Increase in long-term accrued leave payable (111,336)        
                    Net Increase in net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows (3,055,502)     


(108,591)         
      An internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of health insurance
        to individual funds and component units.  The change in net position of these activities
        is reported within the governmental activities. 891,385          
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 18,176,635$    


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit C-1


December 31, 2016
Assets
Cash and investments 2,919,197$      
Accounts receivable - accrued interest 8,089               
Total Assets 2,927,286$      
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities
  Claims payable 332,316$         
Net Position
  Unrestricted 2,594,970        
Total Liabilities and Net Position 2,927,286$      


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.


Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit C-2


Year Ended December 31, 2016
Operating Revenues
  Charges for services 5,655,053$     
Operating Expenses
  Contractual services 1,535              
  Insurance claims and administration 4,771,189       
Total Operating Expenses 4,772,724       
Income from Operations 882,329          
Nonoperating Revenues
  Investment income 9,056              
Change in Net Position 891,385          
Net Position, beginning of year 1,703,585       
Net Position, end of year 2,594,970$     


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit C-3


Year Ended December 31, 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
    Receipts from other funds and component unit 5,655,053$       
    Payment to suppliers (1,535)              
    Payment for insurance claims and administration (4,860,993)       
Net cash flows from operating activities 792,525            
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
    Investment income received 967                  
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 793,492            
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 2,125,705         
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 2,919,197$       
Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net Cash
  Flows from Operating Activities
    Income from operations 882,329$          
    Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to 
      net cash flows from operating activities:
         Decrease in claims payable (89,804)            
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 792,525$          


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  The financial statements of the City of Valdez (the City) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  Reporting Entity  The City of Valdez was incorporated on December 11, 1901. The City operates under a Council­ Manager form of government and provides a full range of services including public safety, highways and streets, sanitation,  health and social services, culture and recreation,  education,  public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.  The accompanying financial statements present the City of Valdez (the primary government) and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is presented in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The Valdez City Schools and the Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc. are reported as discretely presented component units and the Providence Valdez Medical Center and the Providence Valdez Counseling Center have been blended into the financial statements of the City as Special Revenue Funds.  Providence Valdez Medical Center and Counseling Center  The Medical Center and the Counseling Center are owned by the City, and as such, all risks and rewards from the operations remain with the City. The City Council acts as the government body but has contracted the Centers' operations to Providence Health and Services (Washington non-profit corporation). The Medical and Counseling Centers pay a management fee to Providence Health and Services. Complete special purpose financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Providence Valdez Hospital, P.O. Box 550, Valdez, AK 99686.  Valdez City Schools  Valdez City Schools is responsible for elementary and secondary education within the City. The members of the School Board are elected by the voters. However, the School District is fiscally dependent upon the City because the City Council approves the total annual budget of the School District, issues bonds to finance School District construction, levies the necessary taxes, and provides significant operating subsidies to the School District.  Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc.  Pursuant to an agreement with the City, as of January 1, 1997, all accounting, operations and management of the Museum has been delegated to the Museum's Board of Directors. The City Council appoints the Museum Board of Directors. However, the Museum is fiscally dependent upon the City because the City Council approves the annual budget, owns the Museum property and equipment and provides significant operating subsidies to the Museum.   
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Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices at the addresses below:   Valdez City Schools Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc.  PO Box 8 PO Box 398  Valdez, Alaska 99686 Valdez, Alaska 99686  The accounting policies of the City of Valdez conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies:  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on fees and charges to external parties. The City currently operates only governmental type activities.  The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The only proprietary fund reported by the City is an internal service fund.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation  The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Charges for services are recognized as revenues when earned.  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensate absences are recorded only to the extent they have matured.   
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Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue in the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when received by the government.  The City reports the following major governmental funds:  The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  The Permanent Fund is used to report investments that are held for the benefit of current and future Valdez citizens. 1.5% of the fund’s market value (as calculated on the last day of the year), may be used to provide resources for capital improvements and operating expenses of the City as designated by the City Council. The remainder is restricted in perpetuity.  The Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations of the Medical Center.  The General City Capital Project Fund accounts for the construction projects for the City.  As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between various functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.  Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.   Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Internal Service Fund are charges to City departments and component units for services provided. Operating expenses for the Internal Service Fund include the costs of services, insurance claims and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non­operating revenues and expenses.  Proprietary Fund  Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City or to other governments.  The City's Internal Service Fund accounts are for the City and Valdez Public School's self-insured health insurance program.    
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Estimates  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting  Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.  1. Prior to November 15, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.  2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  3. Prior to December 20, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. If no Council action is taken, the City Manager's budget becomes the actual budget. Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General, most Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds.  A budget was not adopted for the Self Insurance Internal Service Fund.  4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund or department within a fund must be approved by the City Council. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations on the department level (Administration, Finance; etc.).  5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.  6. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year except for capital expenditure and certain contractual appropriations.  Cash and Cash Equivalents  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all investments to be cash equivalents. The central treasury, which holds cash and investments, is used essentially as a cash management pool by each fund.  Investments  Investments are stated at fair value. Investments of all funds outside of the Permanent Fund are managed within the City's central treasury.  These investments are managed under the General Investments, Investment Policy. A focus on minimizing credit and market risks, mitigating negative effects of inflation and simply identifying and matching the cash flow needs of the City's general and many special revenue funds is the goal.    
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Accounts Receivable  All accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Receivables in excess of 180 days comprise the Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund and the Other Governmental Funds’ accounts receivable allowance for uncollectible accounts.  Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources  Deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of Fund Balance/Net Position by the City that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of Fund Balance/Net Position by the City that is applicable to a future reporting period.  Prepaid Items  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.  Property Taxes  The financial statements reflect the accrual of the 2016 tax levy; the property tax revenues include adjustments for collections of prior year levies as well as for amounts for the 2016 levy not considered to be available.  The property tax receivable reported represents the uncollected amount of all prior levies.  Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two installments in August and October.  The City bills and collects its own property taxes.  The City is permitted by its Code to levy taxes up to $2.00 per $100 of assessed valuation. However, the amount of taxes the City may levy is further limited by the Alaska Statutes which set forth a formula for determining the maximum tax levy against oil and gas production property. The tax rate for the current year ended on December 31, 2016 was $2.00 per $100 of assessed value.  Grants and Intergovernmental Revenues  In applying the measurable and available concept to grants and intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance.   There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts are considered "earned"; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon expenditures recorded.  In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the measurable and available criteria are met.  lnterfund Transactions  During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. The accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers. Operating subsidies are also recorded as transfers. The classification of amounts recorded as subsidies, or advances is determined by the City Council.   
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Capital Assets  Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (roads, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  In the case of the initial capitalization of infrastructure assets, the City chose to include all such items, regardless of their acquisition date.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the useful life of the asset are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Property, plant and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:  Years 
  Buildings 10-100 Improvements other than buildings 3-100 Machinery and equipment 3-50 
 Compensated Absences  It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused personal leave time benefits. All unused personal leave time benefits are paid upon severance.  All personal leave time is accrued when incurred in the government-wide statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  Unearned Revenues  Amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met are recorded as unearned revenue.  Long-term Debt  In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred.  Pensions  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.    
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Fund Balance  In the Fund Financial Statements, fund balance includes five classifications as follows: 
 Nonspendable Fund Balance - amounts that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an endowment fund) or amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid items, supplies, and long-term receivables).  Such constraint is binding until the legal or contractual requirement is repealed or the amounts become spendable. 
 Restricted Fund Balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. Such constraint is binding unless modified or rescinded by external body, laws, or regulation. 
 Committed Fund Balance - amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. Commitments may be changed or lifted by the City Council taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally. 
 Assigned Fund Balance - amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes.  Intent can be expressed by the City Council or by the City Manager, Finance Director or designee. Such constraint is binding unless modified or eliminated by the City Council or City Manager/Finance Director. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. 
 Unassigned Fund Balance - amounts not contained in the other classifications and available for any purpose. Positive unassigned amounts will be reported only in the General Fund. If another governmental fund, other than the General Fund, has a fund balance deficit, then it will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned classification in that fund. 
 The order of spending, regarding the restricted and unrestricted fund balance when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available should first reduce restricted fund balance and then unrestricted fund balance. The order of spending regarding unrestricted fund balance is that committed amounts should be reduced first, followed by the assigned amounts, and then the unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
 Compliance with the provisions of the Fund Balance Classification Policy are reviewed as part of the annual budget adoption process. The City Manager/Finance Director reports to the City Council as close to the end of the year as possible the anticipated year-end fund balance or deficit. The City Council takes appropriate action to commit or assign, or otherwise allocate prior year fund balances as a part of the budget planning process.  Net Position 
 Government-wide net position is divided into three components: • Net investment in capital assets - consists of the historical cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. • Restricted net position - consists of assets that are restricted by the City's creditors (for example, through debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by other contributors. • Unrestricted - all other net position is reported in this category.  
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2. Cash and Investments  The City of Valdez utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's portion of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet in each fund as "Cash and Investments." The City also maintains reserve accounts as required by bond covenants.  Reconciliation of Deposit and Investment Balances  The following is a reconciliation of the City's deposit and investment balances to the financial statements as of December 31, 2016.  
 Book Balance Bank Balance 
  Bank deposits and petty cash $ 17,470,647 $ 17,818,090 Investments 344,099,726 344,730,554 Restricted cash and investments 2,567,240 2,567,240 
  Total $ 364,137,613 $ 365,115,884 
 Cash and investments $ 361,570,373Restricted cash and investments:  Unspent bond proceeds 2,367,609 Debt reserve accounts 199,631
 Total $ 364,137,613
 In the normal course of business, the City may issue general obligation bonds to fund various capital projects. At December 31, 2016, a total of $199,631 is being held in an irrevocable trust account pledged for future bond payments and required reserves. This item is reported as restricted cash and investments.  Cash and investments are further categorized as follows:  
 Bank Deposits and Petty Cash Investments Total 
  Unrestricted cash and investments $ 16,087,330 $ 162,849,000 $ 178,936,330 Restricted cash and investments - 2,567,240 2,567,240 
  General cash and investments 16,087,330 165,416,240 181,503,570 Permanent fund 1,383,317 181,250,726 182,634,043 
  Total Cash and Investments $ 17,470,647 $ 346,666,966 $ 364,137,613 
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General Investments  Investment Policy The investment policy for funds other than the Permanent Fund authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the United States; certificates of deposit issued by United States domestic banks which are members of the FDIC; corporate debt securities with a minimum of "MA"; highest rated commercial paper; bankers acceptances drawn on and accepted by banks with a combined capital and surplus aggregating at least $200,000,000; fully secured shares of federally chartered savings and loan associations in Alaska; fully secured savings and loan associations in Alaska; fully secured deposits with mutual savings banks in Alaska; fully secured fixed-term certificates of indebtedness of federally insured credit unions in Alaska; repurchase agreements; and the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP).  Interest Rate Risk General investment balances and maturities at December 31, 2016 are as follows:  
 Investment Maturities (in years)  
Investment type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 
  Money market funds $ 747,886 $ - $ - U.S. treasuries 104,381,769 499,965 103,881,804 U.S. agencies 43,441,584 - 43,441,584 Treasury inflation-protected notes 7,017,051 - 7,017,051 Corporate bonds 1,763,930 - 1,763,930 Local government investment pool (AMLIP) 8,064,020 8,064,020 - 
  Total General Investments $ 165,416,240 $ 8,563,985 $156,104,369 
 Fair Value Measurement The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.   The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2016:  U.S. treasury securities of $104,381,769, and U.S. treasury inflation-protected notes of $7,017,051 are valued using quoted prices (Level 1 inputs).  U.S. agency securities of $43,441,584 and corporate bonds of $1,763,930 are valued using models with various inputs such as but not limited to daily cash flow, snapshots of market indices and spread scales (Level 2 inputs).  The City has investments in money market funds totaling $747,886 that are not held at fair value, but instead recorded at amortized cost, as of December 31, 2016. The City’s investment in AMLIP of $8,064,020 is measured at net asset value, as of December 31, 2016. Management believes these values approximate fair value.   
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Credit Risk Money market funds are subject to credit risk because of the repurchase and sale agreement features within the money market demand deposit cash accounts. Generally, U.S. agencies are considered free of credit risk because they are issued through, and backed by the full faith and taxing authority of the federal government.  The City’s investments in U.S. treasury bonds, U.S. agency bonds, and U.S. treasury inflation-protected notes are rated AA+ by Standard and Poor’s.  Investments in corporate bonds were not rated by Standard & Poor’s. The AMLIP local government pooled investments in the amount of $8,064,020 represent 4.9% of the total general investments.  The AMLIP is an external investment pool and is rated AAAm for credit risk purposes.  Alaska Statute 37.23 establishes regulatory oversight of the Pool.  The law sets forth numerous requirements regarding authorized investments and reporting.  The share value of investments in the AMLIP is approximately equal to fair value.   Separately issued financial statements for AMLIP may be obtained by contacting the sponsor at 212 Second Street, Suite 200, Juneau, AK  99801. A portion of the general cash pool represent bond proceeds and are subject to arbitrage yield restrictions.  Foreign Currency Risk Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair value of an investment. As of December 31, 2016 the City did not have any investments in international debt obligations or equity mutual funds and was therefore not subject to Foreign Currency Risk.  Permanent Fund Investments  The Permanent Fund is reporting $182,634,043 in cash and investments at December 31, 2016. Of this amount, $1,383,317 is equity in the central treasury (cash and demand amounts). The remaining amount, $181,250,726 is held in investment accounts as noted below.  Investment Policy The investment policy for the Permanent Fund authorizes the City to invest in domestic fixed income, domestic equities, and international equities. In an attempt to inflation proof the Permanent Fund, the investment policy is revised in the first quarter of every fiscal year. For 2016, the target allocation was 40% fixed income, 29% domestic equity, 21% international equities, 0% treasury inflation protected securities, 10% real estate, and 0% cash and equivalents. A range of plus or minus 6% for the fixed income class, a range of plus or minus 4% for the domestic equity class, and a range of plus or minus 3% for the international equity and real estate classes are allowed to accommodate normal market fluctuations and prevent frequent rebalancing.    Interest Rate Risk Because the City of Valdez Permanent Fund is designed to hold principal investments perpetually in trust for the future earnings to benefit the present and future generations of City residents, there are no maturity limitations in the policy. The policy focuses more on limiting interest rate risk by diversification in many investment types. A segmented time distribution of all investment types is presented below in an effort to disclose those investment types and amounts that are subject to interest rate risk.   
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Permanent Fund investment balances and maturities at December 31, 2016 are as follows:   Investment Maturities (in years)  
Investment type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10 
  Money market funds $ 237,514 $ - $ - $ - $ - U.S. treasuries 10,149,671 1,702,782 6,516,123 872,980 1,057,786 U.S. agencies 3,974,410 5,619 85,568 274,184 3,609,039 Treasury inflation-protected notes 1,463,512 585,291 878,221 - Municipal bonds 501,460 - 501,460 - - Corporate bonds 8,380,144 558,719 1,981,006 2,948,641 2,891,778 International bond funds 19,334,933 - - 19,334,933 - Private debt obligations 286,044 - 286,044 - - Mortgage/Asset-backed securities 309,417 - - - 309,417 Domestic bond funds 25,174,315 - - 25,174,315 - 
Domestic equity funds 55,322,628  International equity funds 35,576,057  Real estate investment trusts 20,540,621  
  Total Permanent Fund $181,250,726 $ 2,267,120 $ 9,955,492 $ 49,483,274 $ 7,868,020 
 As of December 31, 2016, an actual asset allocation to target allocation is presented below. All categories fell within the allowable range at December 31, 2016.   Actual vs. Target Allocation 


Investment class Actual $ % Actual % Target % Difference
% out of Policy Range 


  Domestic equity $ 55,322,628 30.52% 29% 1.52% na International equity  35,576,057 19.63% 21% -1.37% na Fixed income 68,110,394 37.58% 40% -2.42% na Treasury inflation-protected notes 1,463,512 0.81% 0% 0.81% na Real estate investment trusts 20,540,621 11.33% 10% 1.33% na Money market funds 237,514 0.13% 0% 0.13% na 
     Total $ 181,250,726 100% 100% 0.0% na 
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Fair Value Measurement The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.   The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2016:  Investments are classified in the fair value hierarchy as follows:  Investments by fair value level Fair Value Level 1 Level 2
 
U.S. treasuries $ 10,149,671 $ 10,149,671 $ -
U.S. agencies 3,974,410 - 3,974,410
Treasury inflation-protected notes 1,463,512 1,463,512 -Municipal bonds 501,460 - 501,460
Corporate bonds 8,380,144 - 8,380,144
International bond funds 19,334,933 19,334,933 -
Private debt obligations 286,044 - 286,044
Mortgage/Asset-backed securities 309,417 - 309,417Domestic bond funds 25,174,315 25,174,315 -
Domestic equity funds 55,322,628 55,322,628 -International equity funds 35,576,057 27,499,001 8,077,056
 
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 160,472,591 $ 138,944,060 $ 21,528,531
 Investments measured at the net asset value level (NAV) -   
Real estate investment trusts $ 20,540,621    Investments measured at amortized cost -   Money market funds  237,514 
   Total Investment $ 181,250,726 


 The Permanent Fund’s investments classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Investments classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using models with various inputs such as but not limited to daily cash flow, snapshots of market indices and spread scales.   The City has investments in money market funds totaling $237,514 that are not held at fair value, but are instead recorded at amortized cost as of December 31, 2016.  The City has investments in real estate investment trusts totaling $20,540,621 that are held at the net asset value. The net asset value is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value. The net asset value is based on the fair value of the underlying investments held by the fund less its liability.      
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The following table summarizes investments in real estate funds measured at fair value based on NAV per share as of December 31, 2016:  


2016  Fair Value Unfunded Commitment


Redemption Frequency (if currently eligible) Redemption Notice Period


 


    Prime Property Fund $ 8,901,026 $ - Quarterly 60 days Trumbull Property Fund 11,639,595 - Quarterly 60 days 
     $ 20,540,621 $ -    
 Credit Risk Credit Quality Ratings 
 Standard and Poor’s  
Investment type Fair Value AAA to A- BBB+ to BBB- Not Rated 
  U.S. treasuries $ 10,149,671 $ 10,149,671 $ - $ - U.S. agencies 3,974,410 3,974,410 - - Treasury inflation-protected notes 1,463,512 1,463,512 - - Municipal bonds 501,460 - - 501,460 Corporate bonds 8,380,144 4,833,302 2,743,066 803,776 International bond funds 19,334,933 19,334,933 - - Mortgage/Asset-backed securities 309,417 - - 309,417 Private debt obligations 286,044 286,044 - - Domestic bond funds 25,174,315 25,174,315 - - Investments not subject to credit risk 111,676,820 - - - 
   Total Investments $ 181,250,726 $ 65,216,187 $ 2,743,066 $ 1,614,653 
 The Permanent Fund policies specifically limit the types of investments that can be purchased in an effort to limit credit risk. The policies limit corporate and agency bonds to those investments rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO) and those rated Investment Grade or higher. Investment Grade is defined by Standard and Poor's (a NRSRO) as any investment rated BBB- or higher.  Policy requires the City to be notified in writing within 30 days if any non-rated or below investment grade investment is in the fund. These investments must be sold within 6 months of the rating being downgraded below Investment Grade.  Cash and investments are subject to credit risk because of the repurchase and sale agreement features within the money market demand deposit cash accounts. Many U.S. agencies are considered free of credit risk because they are issued through, and backed by the full faith and taxing authority of the federal government. Of the total Permanent Fund, $69,573,906 or 38% is considered subject to credit risk.   
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 Concentration of Credit Risk The Permanent Fund investment policy states the “no fixed income security shall exceed 5% of the market value of the portfolio, with the exception of U.S. government and agency securities”. As of December 31, 2016, no single issuer or security, with the exception of the U.S. Treasury Department and various U.S. governmental agencies, exceeded 5% of the Permanent Fund’s holdings. While not rated for credit default risk, the specific nature of the real estate investments in the amount of $20,540,621 (11.3%) could be considered a concentration investment risk because it is comprised of 2 limited partnership unit-investments in private real estate investment trusts.  Foreign Currency Risk As of December 31, 2016, a total of $54,910,990 (30.3%) of the total fund value is invested in international debt obligations and equity mutual funds that are considered subject to Foreign Currency Risk. The mutual funds are highly diversified globally and in many different sectors.  3. Receivables, Deferred Inflows and Unearned Revenue 
 Receivables as of December 31, 2016 for the City's individual major funds, nonmajor funds in the aggregate, and internal service fund, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:  


 General Fund Permanent Fund


Providence Valdez Medical CenterSpecial Revenue Fund
General City Capital Project Fund


Other Governmentaland Internal Service Funds Totals
  Property taxes $ 567,308 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 567,308Grants and shared revenues 186,276 - - 164,070 537,452 887,798Accounts and assessments 372,838 29 2,893,000 235,829 324,308 3,826,004Accrued interest 127,347 170,585 - 289,829 43,470 631,231
 Total receivables 1,253,769 170,614 2,893,000 689,728 905,230 5,912,341
    Less allowance for uncollectible accounts - - (323,000) - (33,000) (356,000) 
 Net Receivables $ 1,253,769 $ 170,614 $ 2,570,000 $ 689,728 $ 872,230 $ 5,556,341
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Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also report unearned revenues in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.   At December 31, 2016, the various components of deferred inflows of resources and unearned revenues reported in the governmental funds were are follows: 


 
Deferred Inflows of Resources UnearnedRevenue


 Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 567,308 $ -Special assessments not yet due (General Fund) 2,018 -Special assessments not yet due (General City Capital Project Fund) 60,829 -Prepaid property taxes (General Fund) 31,968 -Delinquent accounts receivable (Medical Center) 859,846 -Delinquent accounts receivable (Counseling Center) 28,140 -Services paid in advance (General Fund and Harbor Fund) - 35,012
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements (General Fund)  - 11,213
 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources and Unearned Revenues for Governmental Funds $ 1,550,109 $ 46,225
 4. Inter-Fund Transfers 
 Transfers between funds for the year ended December 31, 2016, consisted of the following:  Transfers  
  
From General Fund to:  


General City Capital Project Fund for capital projects $ 2,815,696 
Nonmajor governmental funds for operations 4,323,387 
Nonmajor governmental funds for debt service 13,364,101 


From Permanent Fund to General Fund for required contribution 2,606,458 
From General City Capital Project Fund to General Fund for operations 1,000,000 
From nonmajor governmental funds to General Fund for operations 3,207,656 
  
Total Transfers to Other Funds $ 27,317,298 
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5. Capital Assets  Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows:  


Governmental Activities 
Balance January 1, 2016 Additions Deletions


Balance December 31, 2016 
  Capital assets not being depreciated:  Land and land improvements $ 15,923,570 $ - $ -  $ 15,923,570 Construction in progress 34,832,615 18,931,822 (4,178,040) 49,586,397 
  Total assets not being depreciated 50,756,185 18,931,822 (4,178,040) 65,509,967 
  Capital assets being depreciated:  Buildings 126,026,365 12,800 - 126,039,165 Improvements other than buildings 138,979,662 2,611,856 - 141,591,518 Equipment 25,652,419 2,068,426 (307,513) 27,413,332 
  Total assets being depreciated 290,658,446 4,693,082 (307,513) 295,044,015 
  


Less accumulated depreciation for:  Buildings 24,192,097 2,433,729 - 26,625,826 Improvements other than buildings 70,894,233 3,956,128 - 74,850,361 Equipment 14,739,516 1,619,437 (307,513) 16,051,440 
  Total accumulated depreciation 109,825,846 8,009,294 (307,513) 117,527,627 
  Total capital assets being depreciated, net 180,832,600 (3,316,212) - 177,516,388 
  Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $231,588,785 $ 15,615,610 $ (4,178,040) $ 243,026,355 
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Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the City as follows for the year ended December 31, 2016:  Governmental Activities  
  General government $ 145,662 Public safety 335,188 Public works 1,625,231 Public service 886,683 Economic development 6,061 Port 1,665,164 Harbor 789,660 Utility 588,448 Airport 65,106 Education 1,662,338 Hospital and health care 239,753 
  Total Depreciation Expense – Governmental Activities $ 8,009,294 
 6. Long-term Debt  Debt Defeasance  In 2012, the City issued general obligation school bonds in the amount of $33,865,000 for the construction of a new Middle School.  In 2013, the City began a structured series of “economic defeasances” on a portion of these bonds. In 2013, the City deposited $18,400,079 into an irrevocable trust for the purpose of making the required debt service payments in the later years.  In 2014, the City paid in an additional $7,651,808 to defease an additional amount.  In 2015, the City made yet another payment into escrow in the amount of $5,501,215.    In aggregate, the City paid in $31,553,102 to defease a total of $28,200,000 in outstanding principal plus the associated interest payments.  The terms of the arrangement meet the recognition criteria as an in-substance defeasance; therefore both the bonds payable and the associated cash held in escrow have been removed from the City’s books, but will continue to be paid by the escrow agent. At December 31, 2016, after adjusting for premiums and prior deferrals, no unamortized premium or deferred gain/loss remains outstanding on this bond.  The City will continue to make the regularly scheduled principal and interest payments through 2017.  At that point, the escrow account will take over and make all future required payments.    At December 31, 2016 the defeased bonds outstanding with the escrow agent was $28,200,000.   
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A summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2016 follows: 
 


Governmental Activities 
Balance January 1, 2016 Additions Reductions


Balance December 31, 2016 Due Within One Year 
  General obligation bonds:  


  $1,645,000 2012 Series Two Harbor Bonds, due in annual installments of $145,000 to $195,000, plus semi-annual interest at 4.0% to 5.0% through September 2024  $ 1,505,000 $ - $ 140,000 $ 1,365,000 $ 145,000 
  $1,095,000 2012 Series Two School Bonds, due in annual installments of $100,000 to $125,000, plus semi-annual interest at 2.0% to 5.0% through September 2024 1,000,000 - 95,000 905,000 100,000 


 $33,865,000 Series 2012 School Bonds, plus interest of 4.0% due June 2017 (amounts are reported net of defeased balance) 2,575,000 - 1,270,000 1,305,000 1,305,000 
 $17,920,000 Series 2016 Harbor Bonds, due in annual installments of $645,000 to $1,340,000, plus semi-annual interest at 2.0% to 5.0% through June 2035 17,920,000 - 630,000 17,290,000 645,000   Unamortized premium on bonds 2,237,184 - 111,859 2,125,325 - 
  Clean Water Loan:  $598,340 Water Loan Payable, $41,833 due in 2017, due in annual installments of $34,851 thereafter, including interest of 1.5%, through March 2036 598,340 - - 598,340 25,876 
  Landfill closure and post-closure monitoring costs 5,415,446 - 3,058,247 2,357,199 -   Accrued leave 1,292,225 793,345 682,009 1,403,561 750,000   Net pension liability 12,238,375 4,827,275 - 17,065,650 - 
  Totals $ 44,781,570 $ 5,620,620 $ 5,987,115 $ 44,415,075 $ 2,970,876 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds follow:   General Obligation Bonds  
Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total 
  2017 $ 2,195,000 $ 1,914,164 $ 4,109,164 2018 915,000 841,800 1,756,800 2019 935,000 815,550 1,750,550 2020 955,000 785,400 1,740,400 2021 995,000 750,875 1,745,875 2022-2026 4,880,000 3,086,175 7,966,175 2027-2031 5,005,000 1,896,375 6,901,375 2032-2035 4,985,000 513,875 5,498,875 
   $ 20,865,000 $ 10,604,214 $ 31,469,214 
 Debt service payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Debt Service Fund. The accrued leave is primarily liquidated by the General Fund.  Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Clean Water Loan follow:   Clean Water Loan  
Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total 
  2017 $ 25,876 $ 15,957 $ 41,833 2018 26,264 8,587 34,851 2019 26,658 8,193 34,851 2020 27,058 7,793 34,851 2021 27,463 7,388 34,851 2022-2026 143,622 30,632 174,254 2027-2031 154,722 19,532 174,254 2032-2036 166,677 7,577 174,254 
   $ 598,340 $ 105,659 $ 703,999 
 Debt service payments on the Clean Water Loan are made by the Utility Fund or Debt Service Fund.        The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.          
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7. Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability 
 The City operates two landfills. One is a regular landfill and the other is a construction waste pit.  State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place final covers on its landfill sites when they stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites for 30 years after closure.  Although closure and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date the landfills stop accepting waste, generally accepted accounting principles require that the City report a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. In 2016, the City revised the estimated closure and post-closure costs of the landfill and construction waste pit. The revised estimates for total closure and post closure monitoring costs were $4,098,176 and $1,221,476, respectively, for the regular landfill and construction waste pit. To date, the City estimates that both landfill and construction waste pit are 45% and 42% full, respectively, representing a currently reported long-term liability of $1,844,179 and $513,020, respectively.   The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post closure care of $2,962,453 as the remaining expected usage is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2016. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations. The remaining life of the landfill is estimated to be approximately 15 years. The remaining life of the construction pit is estimated to be approximately 52 years. 
 At December 31, 2016, the City has not committed or assigned any fund balance to fund the cost of closure and post-closure monitoring, nor have any assets been restricted for this purpose. 
 8. Related Party Transactions 
 The City of Valdez made payments to the following related parties during the year ended December 31, 2016: 
  
  Valdez City Schools $ 10,644,412 Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc. $ 455,000 


     The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.        
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 9. Fund Balances  Fund balances, reported in the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate on the governmental funds balance sheet are subject to the following constraints:  


 General Fund Permanent Fund


Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund
General City Capital Project Fund


Nonmajor Govern-mental Funds Totals
  Nonspendable –  Prepaid items $ 184,329 $ - $ - $ - $ 68,017 $ 252,346 
  Restricted:  Permanent Fund - 182,738,633 - - - 182,738,633 Bond reserve - - - - 199,631 199,631 Capital acquisitions - - 72,000 2,367,609 - 2,439,609 
  Total restricted  - 182,738,633 72,000 2,367,609 199,631 185,377,873 
  Committed:     Consulting and contracts 347,455 - - - - 347,455   Construction - - - 1,684,652 - 1,684,652 
  Total committed 347,455 - - 1,684,652 - 2,032,107 
  Assigned:  Capital and capital reserves  17,494,732 - - 40,157,636 - 57,652,368 Subsequent year expenditures 19,903,382 - - - - 19,903,382 Consulting and contracts 406,265 - - - - 406,265 Hospital and healthcare - - 10,016,154 - 798,357 10,814,511 Debt service - - - - 9,624,334 9,624,334 Port - - - - 1,130,811 1,130,811 Harbor - - - - 1,902,865 1,902,865 Utility - - - - 1,834,507 1,834,507 Airport - - - - 736,973 736,973 Valdez Housing Improvement Authority - - - - 3,126,737 3,126,737 
  Total assigned 37,804,379 - 10,016,154 40,157,636 19,154,584 107,132,753 
  Unassigned 64,263,094 - - - - 64,263,094 
  Total Fund Balances $102,599,257 $ 182,738,633 $ 10,088,154 $ 44,209,897 $ 19,422,232 $ 359,058,173 
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 10. Operating Leases 
 The City has a management and operating agreement with Providence Health and Services- Washington for $200,000 per year effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019, with an option to extend another five years.  11. Medical and Counseling Centers  Net Patient Service Revenues  The Medical Center has agreements with governmental and other third-party payers that provide for payments to the Medical Center at amounts different from its established charges. Payment arrangements for major third-party payers may be based on prospectively determined rates, reimbursed cost, discounted charges, and per diem payments.  Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts due from patients, third­party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. Adjustments from finalization of prior year's cost reports and other third-party settlement estimates resulted in a decrease in net patient services revenues of $11,000 for the year ended December 31, 2016.  The following are the components of net patient service revenues for the Medical Center for the year ended December 31, 2016:  Medical Center 
  Patient service charges $ 15,164,000 
  Less adjustments to patient service charges -    Provision for uncollectible accounts  (356,000) 
   Net patient service revenues – full accrual 14,808,000 Adjustment to modified accrual 64,604 
  Net Patient Service Revenues – modified accrual $ 14,872,604 
 The mix of net patient charges for the year ended December 31, 2016 from significant third-party payers were as follows:  
 Counseling Center Medical Center 
  Medicare 1% 24% Medicaid 30 29 Commercial and other insurance 69 47 
   Total 100% 100% 
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Operating Leases  The Counseling Center and the Medical Center lease various medical and office equipment under operating leases that expire in the next five years, generally with no renewal or purchase options. Rental expense for all operating leases was approximately $69,000 (Counseling Center) and $66,000 (Medical Center) for the year ended December 31, 2016.  The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases, as of December 31, 2016, that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year:  
Year Ending December 31,  Medical Center 
   2017 $ 43,000 2018  43,000 2019  28,000 
    $ 114,000 
 Litigation and Contingencies  The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations from federal, state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.  Government monitoring and enforcement activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations by healthcare providers of regulations, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as repayment of patient services previously billed.    Management is aware of certain asserted and unasserted legal claims and regulatory matters arising in the course of business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material adverse effect on the Medical Center's or the Counseling Center's future financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.        The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.           
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Related Party Transactions 
 (a) Payable to the Corporation The accounting, management, and human resource functions of the Counseling Center and the Medical Center are provided by Providence Health and Services (the Corporation). All receipts and payments on behalf of the Counseling Center and the Medical Center are received or made by the Corporation and are recorded in the accompanying balance sheets. The amount payable to the Corporation at December 31, 2016 was approximately $1,651,000 (Medical Center) and $69,000 (Counseling Center). 


 As discussed above, the Counseling Center and Medical Center also pay management fees to the Corporation. The amount paid to the Corporation for management fees for the year ended December 31, 2016 was approximately $573,000 (Medical Center).   
 (b) Insurance Coverage The Counseling Center and Medical Center are covered for professional and general liability insurance on an occurrence basis through the Corporation's self-insurance programs. The charge by the Corporation for annual insurance expense was approximately $1,000 (Counseling Center) and $25,000 (Medical Center) for the year ended December 31, 2016. 
 (c) Employee Benefits All employees are employed by the Corporation. The Counseling Center and the Medical Center are not liable for employee benefits including retirement plans and vacation and sick leave, except for the contribution allocation by the Corporation. The Counseling Center and the Medical Center's contribution to these pension plans for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $31,000 (Counseling Center) and $523,000 (Medical Center).  12. Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Plan 


 General Information About the Plan 
 The City participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).  PERS is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local government employees, other than teachers.  The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.   
 The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and other required supplemental information.  That report is available via the internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers.  Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. 
 The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and post-employment health care benefits.  There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date.  For all tiers within the Defined Benefit (DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula comprised of a multiplier times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of service.  The multiplier is increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees.  Police/Fire employees accrue benefits at an accelerated rate. The tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding normal retirement age, early retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA adjustments, and other OPEB benefits.  A complete benefit comparison chart is available at the website noted above.   
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The PERS DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective June 30, 2006.  New employees hired after that date participate in the PERS Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in these notes.  
 Historical Context and Special Funding Situation 
 In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS plan from an agent-multiple employer plan to a cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July 1, 2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation which statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a state funded “on-behalf” contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that employer contributions be calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to participants of the PERS Tier IV defined contribution plan described later in these notes.   
 Alaska Statute 39.35.255 requires the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that, when combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board. As such, the Plan is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB, and management has recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and disclosures on this basis.  
 It is important to note that the Alaska Legislature has the power and authority to change the aforementioned statute through the legislative process.   The City records these on-behalf contributions as revenue and expense/expenditures as dictated by the governing GAAP for each basis of accounting depending on fund type.  Employee Contribution Rates  Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary.  Police and firefighters are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual covered salary.      Employer and Other Contribution Rates  There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions and related liabilities.  These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.  Employer Effective Rate:   This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation, this rate is statutorily capped at 22% of eligible wages, subject to a wage floor, and other termination events. This 22% rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan.  Contributions derived from the defined contribution employees are referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability or DBUL contribution.  ARM Board Adopted Rate:  This is the rate formally adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board.  This rate is actuarially determined and used to calculate annual Plan funding requirements, without regard to the statutory rate cap or the GASB accounting rate.  Effective July 1, 2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term which ends in 2039.  This will result in lower ARM Board Rates than previously adopted.  On-behalf Contribution Rate:  This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the current statute.  The statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availability, an on-behalf amount equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer  
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Effective Rate.  In 2015, the State Legislature appropriated a one-time contribution to the Plan in the amount of $1 billion. As a result, the on-behalf contribution in 2015 was significantly higher than the statutory amount. In 2016, the on-behalf contribution has returned to “normal” levels and generally equals the statutory calculation.  In the governmental fund financial statements, on-behalf contribution amounts have been recognized as additional revenues and expenditures.  On the government-wide financial statements, the on-behalf amounts are included in revenue and expense only to the extent they are applicable to the measurement period.    GASB Rate:  This is the rate used to determine the long-term pension and healthcare liability for plan accounting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as established by GASB.  Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for this rate calculation are mandated by GASB.  Additionally, the GASB Rate disregards all future Medicare Part D payments.  For FY16, the rate uses an 8% pension discount rate and a 4.3% healthcare discount rate.    The GASB Rate and the ARM Board Adopted Rate differ significantly as a direct result of variances in the actuarial methods and assumptions used.    Contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 were determined in the June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations, respectively.  City contribution rates for the 2016 calendar year were as follows: 
 


January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 
Employer Effective Rate 


ARM Board Adopted Rate
StateContributionRate GASB Rate 


  Pension 13.25% 16.38% 3.63% 37.79% Postemployment healthcare (see Note 14) 8.75% 10.81% 1.56% 58.73% 
 Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.19% 5.19% 96.52% 
 


July 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 
Employer Effective Rate 


ARM Board Adopted Rate
StateContributionRate GASB Rate 


  Pension 14.96% 19.10% 4.14% 24.49% Postemployment healthcare (see Note 14) 7.04% 7.04% -% 56.64% 
 Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 26.14% 4.14% 81.13% 
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 In 2016, the City was credited with the following contributions into the pension plan.    


 


Measurement PeriodJuly 1, 2015toJune 30, 2016


City Fiscal Year January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016
 Employer contributions (including DBUL) $     799,354 $     879,783Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf) 324,562 355,530
 Total Contributions $     1,123,916 $  1,235,313
 In addition, employee contributions to the Plan totaled $253,684 during the City’s fiscal year.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions.    At December 31, 2016, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the City.  The amount recognized by the City for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:   2016
 City proportionate share of NPL $     17,065,650
State’s proportionate share of NPL associated with the City 2,151,591
 Total Net Pension Liability $     19,217,241
 The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 to calculate the net pension liability as of that date.  The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, including the State, actuarially determined.  At the June 30, 2016 measurement date, the City’s proportion was 0.30531 percent, which was an increase of 0.05297 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.       The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.      
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $4,291,609.  Of this amount, $324,562 was recorded as on-behalf revenue and expense for additional contributions paid by the State.  At December 31, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:  


 
Deferred Outflows of Resources


Deferred Inflows of Resources 
   Difference between expected and actual experience $ 1,569 $ (190,226 ) Changes in assumptions 78,711 - Net difference between projected and actual earnings 1,677,471 -   on pension plan investments  Changes in proportion and differences between City       contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,246,512 - City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 469,240 - 
  Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions $ 3,473,503 $ (190,226) 
 The $469,240 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:  Year Ending December 31,  
   2017 $ 1,320,128 2018 365,339 2019 685,755 2020 442,815 
  Total Amortization $ 2,814,037 
       The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.         
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Actuarial Assumptions  
 The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement period, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2016.  The actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2015 (latest available) was prepared by Conduent HR Services.  The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2013, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board to better reflect expected future experience.    
 Actuarial Cost Method  Entry Age Normal – Level Percentage of Payroll  Asset Valuation Method  Invested assets are reported at fair value.  Allocation Methodology  Amounts were allocated to employers based on the projected present value of contributions for FY2017-FY2039.  The liability is expected to go to zero at 2039. 
  


Investment Return / Discount Rate  8.00% per year (geometric), compounded annually, net of expenses   Salary Scale  Inflation – 3.12% per year Productivity – 0.50% per year  Peace Officer/Firefighter – graded by years of service from 9.66% to 4.92% All others – graded by age and years of service from 8.55% to 4.34% 
   Total Inflation   Measured by the consumer price index for urban and clerical workers for Anchorage and is assumed to increase 3.12% annually.  Mortality  Pre-termination – Based on the 2010-2013 actual mortality experience Post-termination – 96% of all rates of the RP-2000 table, 2000 base year projected to 2018 with projection scale BB 
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   The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table (note that the rates shown below exclude the inflation component: 
 Asset Class Long-term Expected Real Rate of Return 
   Domestic equity 5.35% Global equity (non-US) 5.55% Private equity 6.25% Fixed income composite 0.80% Real estate 3.65% Alternative equity 4.70% 
 Discount Rate 
 The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions will continue to follow the current funding policy which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.   Discount Rate Sensitivity   The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00 percent) than the current rate:  


 Proportional Share 1% Decrease (7.00%) 
Current Discount Rate (8.00%) 1% Increase (9.00%) 


  City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 0.30531% $ 21,979,693 $ 17,065,650 $ 12,920,881 
 Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position   Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS financial report.    
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13. Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Plan  
Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV, a defined contribution plan.  This Plan is administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration in conjunction with the defined benefit plan noted above. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.  The Alaska Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements.  Included in the Plan are individual pension accounts, retiree medical insurance plan and a separate Health Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums and other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan.  This Plan is included in the comprehensive annual financial report for PERS, and at the following website, as noted above.  http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers.    Contributions to the DC plan consist solely of employer and employee contributions with no special funding or other nonemployer contributions.  In addition, actual remittances to the PERS system require that the City contribute at 22%.  After deducting the DC plan contributions (and related OPEB contributions), the remaining remittance (the DBUL) is deposited into the DB plan as noted earlier.  Benefit Terms  Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% with two years of service, plus an additional 25% per year thereafter for full vesting at five years of service.    Employee Contribution Rate  Employees are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary.  This amount goes directly to the individual’s account.  Employer Contribution Rate  For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City was required to contribute 5% of covered salary into the Plan.    The City and employee contributions to PERS for pensions for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $234,207 and $374,731, respectively.  The City contribution amount was recognized as pension expense/expenditures.  14. Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans  Defined Benefit OPEB  As part of its participation in the PERS DB Plan (Tiers I, II, III), the City participates in the Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust (ARHCT). The ARHCT is self-funded and provides major medical coverage to retirees of the System.  Benefits vary by Tier level.  The Plan is administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration.  Employer contribution rates are established in concert with the Defined Benefit Pension Plan described earlier in these notes.     
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 Employer Contribution Rate  For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City was required to contribute 8.75% of covered payroll into the OPEB plan. Employees do not contribute.    Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost  Actual contributions into the Plan for the last three years were as follows.  The amounts reported here include only the employer required contributions and do not include any amounts attributed to the on-behalf contributions by the State.  On-behalf contributions to the OPEB Plan in 2016, 2015, and 2014 were $78,422, $60,564 and $259,985, respectively.  


Year Ended December 31, AnnualOPEB Costs CityContributions % of CostsContributed
 2016  $ 491,927 $ 491,927 100 %2015 550,158 550,158 100 %2014 633,568 633,568 100 %
 Defined Contribution OPEB 
 Defined Contribution Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) participate in the Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD), and the Retiree Medical Plan. Information on these plans is included in the comprehensive annual financial report for the PERS Plan noted above.  These plans provide for death, disability, and post-employment health care benefits.   
 Employer Contribution Rates 
 Employees do not contribute to the DC OPEB plans.  Employer contribution rates for the year ended December 31, 2016 were as follows: 
 
 Other Tier IV Police/Fire Tier IV 
  Retiree medical plan 1.18% 1.18% Occupational death and disability benefits 0.17% 0.49% 
  Total Contribution Rates 1.35% 1.67% 
 In addition, PERS defined contribution members also participate in the Health Reimbursement Arrangement.  AS 39.30.370 establishes this contribution amount as “three percent of the average annual employee compensation of all employees of all employers in the plan”.  As of July 1, 2016, for actual remittance, this amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full-time or part-time employee per pay period and approximates $2,049 per year for each full-time employee, and $1.31 per hour for part-time employees. 
 Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost 
 In 2016, the City contributed $222,005 in DC OPEB costs.  These amounts have been recognized as expense/expenditures.  
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15. Health Insurance Internal Service Fund 
 The Health Insurance Internal Service Fund was organized in 1991.  The City of Valdez and Valdez City School District have entered into a joint arrangement for self-insuring for health insurance.  The program's general objectives are to formulate, develop and administer a program of health insurance and to obtain lower costs for that coverage.  The City and School also purchase commercial insurance to provide coverage for claims in excess of $125,000 per employee per year. The various funds of the City and School make payments to the Internal Service Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims. The City accrues a liability for claims incurred but not reported at year end.  The liability is estimated based on a two-month average of claims paid during the year.  Changes in the claims payable for 2015 and 2016 are as follows: 
  
  Claims Payable, December 31, 2014 $ 332,181 2015 claims and changes in estimates 4,358,666 2015 claims paid (4,268,727) 
  Claims Payable, December 31, 2015 422,120 2016 claims and changes in estimates 4,771,189 2016 claims paid (4,860,993) 
  Claims Payable, December 31, 2016 $ 332,316 
 16. Risk Management 
 The City faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of property and contents, (b) employee torts, (c) professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, (d) environmental damage, (e) workers' compensation; i.e., employee injuries, and (f) general liability i.e. personal injuries. Commercial policies, transferring these risks of loss, except for relatively small deductible amounts, are purchased for certain property, port, and boiler and machinery. The City has no coverage for potential losses from environmental damages. Coverage limits and deductibles on the commercial policies have stayed relatively constant for the last several years. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.  The City is a member of the Alaska Public Entity Insurance (APEI), a joint insurance association.   The mission of the Alaska Public Entity Insurance is to provide its members with stable, affordable insurance, broad insurance coverage, and effective risk management services to ensure that maximum funds are available for local government and education programs.   APEI is recognized by the Association of Government Risk Pools (AGRIP).  The APEI provides the City coverage for property, including building and contents, automobiles, mobile equipment and data processing equipment; casualty, including general liability, public officials and employee liability, law enforcement professional liability, auto liability; commercial blanket bond; and workers' compensation.  The APEI is a public entity risk pool organized to share risks among its members.  Funds in excess of expenses and costs of risk management activities and reasonable reserves, including reserves for contingencies, reserves required by excess insurers or reinsurers, reserves as part of a surplus goal or as required by law, may be used to reduce the cost of insurance or increase risk protection for the members; excess funds may be distributed to the members as provided in APEI's bylaws. The City received excess funds in the form of dividends during the year ended December 31, 2016.  Coverage limits and the deductibles on the policies have stayed relatively constant for the past few years.    
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17. Alaska Gasline Port Authority 
 On July 19, 1999, the City passed an ordinance to provide for the creation of the Alaska Gasline Port Authority. The Port Authority, comprised of the City of Valdez, Fairbanks North Star Borough and the North Slope Borough, was formed to promote the development of the natural gas pipeline between the North Slope and the City of Valdez. Originally, the Port Authority board consisted of nine members; three from each of the participating agencies. If constructed, the Port Authority will provide for the operation and maintenance of the gasline. In 2010, North Slope Borough withdrew from participation.  The City of Valdez and the Fairbanks North Star Borough remain members.  There has been limited activity in the last few years.  18. Contingencies 
 From time to time, and in the normal course of business, the City is involved in numerous legal and administrative actions. Final resolutions of these actions cannot be determined at this time.  Management does not believe any of these items represents a material risk of loss to the City.   19. Subsequent Events  The City has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2017, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.  
20. New Accounting Pronouncements  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has passed several new accounting standards with upcoming implementation dates.  Management has not fully evaluated the potential effects of these statements, but believes that GASB Statement 75 will result in the biggest reporting change.  However, actual impacts have not yet been determined.  GASB 74 – Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans – Effective for year-end December 31, 2017, with earlier application encouraged – This statement contains financial reporting guidelines for Postemployment Benefit Plans.  This is the Plan side requirements applicable to OPEB benefits and generally brings the OPEB reporting rules into alignment with the new GASB 67 Pension rules.  GASB 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions – Effective for year-end December 31, 2018, with earlier application encouraged – This statement contains accounting and financial reporting guidelines for OPEB related activities at the participating employer level and generally brings the OPEB reporting rules into alignment with the new GASB 68 Pension rules.  GASB 80 – Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – Effective for year-end December 31, 2017, with earlier application encouraged – This statement requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. This statement amends the previous requirements established in paragraph 53 of GASB 14. The criterion specified in GASB 80 does not apply to component units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to GASB 39.   
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GASB 81 – Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements – Effective for year-end December 31, 2017, with earlier application encouraged – This statement establishes recording and recognition criteria for governments who receive resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement.  GASB 82 – Pension-Issues – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73 – Effective for year-end December 31, 2017, with earlier application encouraged – This statement further amends prior pension reporting to redefine “covered payroll” for required supplementary information, clarifies deviations from actuarial standards, and clarifies the classification of employer-paid member contributions.  GASB 83 – Certain Asset Retirement Obligations – Effective for year-end December 31, 2019, with earlier application encouraged – This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations that are legally enforceable liabilities associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset.  GASB 84 – Fiduciary Activities – Effective for year-end December 31, 2019, with earlier application encouraged – This statement addresses criteria for identifying and reporting fiduciary activities.   GASB 85 – Omnibus – Effective for year-end December 31, 2018, with earlier application encouraged – This statement addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB statements. Issues covered include blending of component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits.  GASB 86 – Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues – Effective for year-end December 31, 2018, with earlier application encouraged – This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt when only existing resources are used, as well as accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on extinguished debt.  GASB 87 – Leases – Effective for year-end December 31, 2020, with earlier application encouraged – This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.        The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. 
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Exhibit D-1


Budgeted Amounts
Actual Variance with


Year Ended December 31, 2016 Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues


Taxes 48,707,100$     44,038,170$     44,097,790$        59,620$           
TAPS litigation settlement -                     32,959,242      32,796,418         (162,824)          
Licenses and permits 60,300             2,300              2,632                  332                 
Fines and forfeitures 15,500             16,500             16,538                38                   
Charges for services 558,469           182,369           234,293              51,924             
Sales and leases -                     395,800           461,642              65,842             
Contributions and donations -                     27,261             28,321                1,060              
Investment income 550,000           650,000           266,891              (383,109)          
Other 60,000             17,550             564,250              546,700           
Intergovernmental:


State of Alaska 1,576,388        3,933,614        1,167,840           (2,765,774)       
Federal sources 1,025,850        1,900,000        2,065,752           165,752           


Total Revenues 52,553,607      84,122,806      81,702,367         (2,420,439)       
Expenditures


Current:
General government 6,569,735        19,479,695      16,355,146         3,124,549        
Public safety 5,122,949        5,232,581        4,730,701           501,880           
Public works 6,575,581        10,172,990      5,574,666           4,598,324        
Public services 5,181,966        4,928,862        4,051,703           877,159           
Economic development 1,775,491        2,046,649        1,208,437           838,212           
Museum 455,000           455,000           455,000              -                     
Education 10,644,412      11,910,757      11,401,554         509,203           
Hospital 447,442           447,442           29,972                417,470           


Capital outlay -                     16,213,044      2,340,674           13,872,370      
Total Expenditures 36,772,576      70,887,020      46,147,853         24,739,167      
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 15,781,031      13,235,786      35,554,514         22,318,728      
Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                     10,920             175,210              164,290           
Transfers in 2,606,458        13,619,396      6,814,114           (6,805,282)       
Transfers out (18,387,489)     (26,358,466)     (20,503,184)        5,855,282        


Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (15,781,031)     (12,728,150)     (13,513,860)        (785,710)          
Net Change in Fund Balance -$                507,636$         22,040,654         21,533,018$     
Fund Balance, beginning of year 80,558,603         
Fund Balance, end of year 102,599,257$      


See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Exhibit D-2
City of Valdez, Alaska


Providence Valdez Medical Center Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual


Original and Actual Variance with
Year Ended December 31, 2016 Final Budget Amounts Final Budget
Revenues


Charges for services 14,836,000$       14,872,604$       36,604$             
Other 226,000             188,000             (38,000)              


Total Revenues 15,062,000        15,060,604        (1,396)               
Expenditures


Current - hospital and healthcare 14,137,000        14,571,000        (434,000)            


Net Change in Fund Balance 925,000$           489,604             (435,396)$          
Fund Balance, beginning of year 9,598,550          
Fund Balance, end of year 10,088,154$       


See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Exhibit E-1


City's 
State of Proportionate Plan Fiduciary


City's City's Alaska Share of the Net Position as
Measurement Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net Pension  a Percentage


Year Period of the Net Share of the Share of the Total City's Liability as a of the Total
Ended Ended Pension Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of Pension


December 31, June 30, Liability Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability


2015 2015 0.25234% 12,238,375$     3,277,702$     15,516,077$  7,114,242$    172.03% 63.96%
2016 2016 0.30531% 17,065,650$     2,151,591$     19,217,241$  8,209,617$    207.87% 59.55%


See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.


Schedule of the City's Information on the Net Pension Liability
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Exhibit E-2


Contributions
Relative to the


Contractually Contractually Contribution City's Contributions as a
Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of


Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll


2015  $            777,732  $            777,732  $                    -  $       7,464,038 10.420%
2016  $            879,783  $            879,783  $                    -  $       8,955,195 9.824%


See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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1. Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
 An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year for the General Fund and all other funds of the City on a modified accrual basis used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures.  
 The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the required budgetary comparison schedules: 
 a. Prior to November 15, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.  b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. c. Prior to December 20, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. If no Council action is taken, the City Manager's budget becomes the actual budget. Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General, most Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds.  A budget was not adopted for the Self Insurance Internal Service Fund. d. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund or department within a fund must be approved by the City Council. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations on the department level (Administration, Finance; etc.). e. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. f. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year except for capital expenditure and certain contractual appropriations. 
 The City publishes its annual budget document and it is available on the City’s website at:  www.ci.valdez.ak.us.  2. Pension Disclosures 
 In accordance with GASB Statement 82, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which contributions to the pension plan are based.  Because a portion of the City’s contributions to the Plan (the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes all PERS participating wages (both DB and DC). 


 Both pension tables are intended to present 10 years of information.  Additional year’s information will be added to the schedules as it becomes available. 
 Schedule of City’s Information on the Net Pension Liability  This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date.  For December 31, 2016, the Plan measurement date is June 30, 2016.  There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement period.  There were no changes in assumptions from the prior measurement period. 
 There were no changes to the allocation methodology.   Schedule of City Contributions This table is based on the City’s contributions for each year presented.  A portion of these contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position. 
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Exhibit F-1


Providence Valdez Total
Gilson Valdez Housing Debt Nonmajor


Medical Counseling Improvement Service Governmental
December 31, 2016 Port Utility Airport Harbor Clinic Center Authority Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments 1,117,687$   1,930,348$   720,142$      1,977,402$   364,869$      362,000$      3,126,737$    9,078,502$    18,677,687$    
Receivables, net:
  Grants and shared revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   537,452        537,452          
  Accounts 41,912          5,173           32,684         11,539         -                  200,000       -                   -                   291,308          
  Accrued interest 5,876           8,024           3,183           8,558           1,360           -                  -                   8,380            35,381            
Prepaid items 42,903          8,678           1,281           15,155         -                  -                  -                   -                   68,017            
Restricted cash and investments:
  Debt reserve accounts -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   199,631        199,631          
Total Assets 1,208,378$   1,952,223$   757,290$      2,012,654$   366,229$      562,000$      3,126,737$    9,823,965$    19,809,476$    
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities
  Accounts payable 34,664$        93,188$       19,036$       61,622$       6,732$         8,000$         -$                  -$                 223,242$        
  Accrued payroll liabilities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  18,000         -                   -                   18,000            
  Payable to Providence Health & Services - Washington -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  69,000         -                   -                   69,000            
  Customer deposits -                  15,850         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   15,850            
  Unearned revenue -                  -                  -                  33,012         -                  -                  -                   -                   33,012            
Total Liabilities 34,664          109,038       19,036         94,634         6,732           95,000         -                   -                   359,104          
Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Unavailable revenues - patient service revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  28,140         -                   -                   28,140            
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 34,664          109,038       19,036         94,634         6,732           123,140       -                   -                   387,244          
Fund Balances
  Nonspendable 42,903          8,678           1,281           15,155         -                  -                  -                   -                   68,017            
  Restricted -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   199,631        199,631          
  Assigned 1,130,811     1,834,507    736,973       1,902,865    359,497       438,860       3,126,737      9,624,334     19,154,584      
Total Fund Balances 1,173,714     1,843,185    738,254       1,918,020    359,497       438,860       3,126,737      9,823,965     19,422,232      
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
  and Fund Balances 1,208,378$   1,952,223$   757,290$      2,012,654$   366,229$      562,000$      3,126,737$    9,823,965$    19,809,476$    


City of Valdez, Alaska
Nonmajor Governmental Funds


Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds


68







Exhibit F-2


Providence Valdez Total
Gilson Valdez Housing Debt Nonmajor


Medical Counseling Improvement Service Governmental
Year Ended December 31, 2016 Port Utility Airport Harbor Clinic Center Authority Fund Funds
Revenues


Fines and forfeitures 1,367$            1,215$         3,015$         2,110$         280$            -$                -$                   -$                  7,987$              
Charges for services 397,901          528,032       869              730,951       -                  220,828       -                    -                    1,878,581         
Sales and leases 36,132            -                  126,793       566,358       144,653       -                  -                    -                    873,936            
Investment income 12,191            23,035         7,524           17,452         2,515           -                  20,279            17,148           100,144            
Other 34,907            4,176           -                  -                  -                  70,000         -                    -                    109,083            
Intergovernmental:


State of Alaska 11,721            14,325         3,907           335,844       -                  339,000       -                    1,765,930      2,470,727         
Total Revenues 494,219          570,783       142,108       1,652,715     147,448       629,828       20,279            1,783,078      5,440,458         
Expenditures


Current:
Port 682,319          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    682,319            
Harbor -                    -                  -                  1,029,237     -                  -                  -                    -                    1,029,237         
Utility -                    1,210,364     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    1,210,364         
Airport -                    -                  243,810       -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    243,810            
Hospital and healthcare -                    -                  -                  -                  74,436         691,000       -                    -                    765,436            


Debt service:
Principal -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    2,135,000      2,135,000         
Interest -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    2,252,950      2,252,950         


Total Expenditures 682,319          1,210,364     243,810       1,029,237     74,436         691,000       -                    4,387,950      8,319,116         
Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures (188,100)         (639,581)      (101,702)      623,478       73,012         (61,172)        20,279            (2,604,872)     (2,878,658)        
Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in 124,331          792,878       169,720       -                  -                  130,000       3,106,458       13,364,101     17,687,488        
Transfers out -                    -                  -                  (507,656)      -                  -                  -                    (2,700,000)     (3,207,656)        


Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 124,331          792,878       169,720       (507,656)      -                  130,000       3,106,458       10,664,101     14,479,832        
Net Change in Fund Balances (63,769)          153,297       68,018         115,822       73,012         68,828         3,126,737       8,059,229      11,601,174        
Fund Balances, beginning of year 1,237,483       1,689,888     670,236       1,802,198     286,485       370,032       -                    1,764,736      7,821,058         
Fund Balances, end of year 1,173,714$     1,843,185$   738,254$      1,918,020$   359,497$      438,860$      3,126,737$     9,823,965$     19,422,232$      


City of Valdez, Alaska
Nonmajor Governmental Funds


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Special Revenue Funds
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards   Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Valdez, Alaska  We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Valdez, Alaska as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Valdez’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2017.  Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of Valdez City Schools, Valdez Museum & Historical Archive Association, Providence Valdez Medical Center, and Providence Valdez Counseling Center as described in our report on City of Valdez’s basic financial statements.  This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. The financial statements of Providence Valdez Medical Center, Providence Valdez Counseling Center, and the Valdez Museum & Historical Archive Association were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standard.    Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Valdez’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Valdez’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Valdez’s internal control.  Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operations of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016-001 to be a material weakness.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016-002 to be a significant deficiency.  Compliance and Other Matters  As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Valdez’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  City of Valdez’s Response to Findings  City of Valdez’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying corrective action plan. City of Valdez’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  Purpose of this Report  The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
  Anchorage, Alaska September 14, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance  Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Valdez, Alaska  Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  We have audited City of Valdez’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Valdez’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. City of Valdez’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   City of Valdez’s basic financial statements include the operations of Valdez City Schools, Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling Center. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Valdez City Schools, Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling Center because they each were subject to separate audits; however, none met the threshold for an audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.   Management’s Responsibility  Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.    Auditor’s Responsibility  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Valdez’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Valdez’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Valdez’s compliance.  Opinion on Each Major Federal Program  In our opinion, City of Valdez complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.  Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  Management of City of Valdez is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Valdez’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Valdez’s internal control over compliance.  A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.    
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance  We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Valdez as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Valdez’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2017, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit included a reference to other auditors. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
  Anchorage, Alaska September 14, 2017      







Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2016


Pass-Through Passed
Federal Entity Through Total


CFDA Identifying to Federal
Number Number Subrecipients  Expenditures 


Department of Agriculture
  Passed through State of Alaska Department of Commerce,
    Community, and Economic Development - Forest Service
    Schools and Roads Cluster - 
      Schools and Roads - Grants to States 10.665 N/A -$                 1,332,631$    
Department of the Interior
  Passed through State of Alaska Department of Commerce,
    Community, and Economic Development -
      Payments in Lieu of Taxes 15.226 N/A -                   732,147         
Environmental Protection Agency
  Passed through State of Alaska Department of Environmental
    Conservation
    Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster -
      Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 891031 -                   17,613          
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards -$                 2,082,391$    


N/A - not available


City of Valdez, Alaska


Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / Program or Cluster Title


See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  Year Ended December 31, 2016 
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1. Basis of Presentation  
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award activity of City of Valdez, Alaska under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of City of Valdez, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of City of Valdez.  All of the City’s federal awards were in the form of cash assistance for the year ended December 31, 2016 and had no federally funded insurance programs or loan guarantees during the year ended December 31, 2016. 
  2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.   3. Indirect Cost Rate  
City of Valdez has not elected to use the 10­percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 







        


BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms.  
 
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of State Financial Assistance Required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits  Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Valdez, Alaska  Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program  We have audited City of Valdez’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Valdez’s major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.  City of Valdez’s major state programs are identified in the accompanying schedule of state financial assistance.    City of Valdez’s basic financial statements include the operations of Valdez City Schools which received $6,125,816 in state awards which is not included in City of Valdez’s schedule of state financial assistance during the year ended December 31, 2016.  Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Valdez City Schools because it was subjected to a separate audit in accordance with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits.  City of Valdez’s basic financial statements also include the operations of Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling Center. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Valdez Museum and Historical Archive Association, Inc., Providence Valdez Medical Center and Providence Valdez Counseling Center because they were subjected to separate audits; however, none met the threshold for an audit in accordance with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits.  Management’s Responsibility  Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.  
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Auditor’s Responsibility 
 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Valdez’s major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirement of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Those standards and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Valdez’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Valdez’s compliance.  Opinion on Each Major State Program  In our opinion, City of Valdez complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.  Report on Internal Control Over Compliance  Management of City of Valdez is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Valdez’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state program, and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Valdez’s internal control over compliance.  A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  Report on Schedule of State Financial Assistance Required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits  We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Valdez as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Valdez’s basic financial statements.  We issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2017 which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit included a reference to other auditors. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
  Anchorage, Alaska September 14, 2017 


 







Award  Total State 
State Agency and Award Name Number  Expenditures 


Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development
Improvements to Small Boat Harbor 14-RR-015 30,407$                  
Senior Center Facility and Grounds Upgrade 14-DC-140 28,339                    


* Small Boat Harbor Expansion and Upland Development 14-DC-141 570,030                  
* Valdez Boat Harbor 13-DC-588 156,144                  
* Community Revenue Sharing 2016 181,620                  


Shared Fisheries Tax 2016 28,504                    
Total Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 995,044                  
Department of Military and Veteran Affairs


2016 Local Emergency Planning Committee Grant 16LEPC - GR35602 6,623                     
2017 Local Emergency Planning Committee Grant 17LEPC - GR35602 4,656                     
2014 State Homeland Security Program 14SHSP - GR34094 3,011                     


Total Department of Military and Veteran Affairs 14,290                    
Department of Revenue


* Electric & Telephone Cooperative Tax 2016 200,095                  
* Fisheries Business Tax 2016 290,247                  


Liquor Licenses 2016 15,050                    
Total Department of Revenue 505,392                  
Department of Administration


* PERS Relief 2016 433,952                  
Department of Education and Early Development


* School Debt Retirement Program 2016 1,555,281               
Continuing Education - 1,500                     
Public Library Assistance Grant PLA 17 6,860                     


Total Department of Education and Early Development 1,563,641               
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities


* Harbor Debt Retirement Program 2016 210,650                  
Department of Corrections


FY2014 Capital Projects - 3,118                     
Total State Financial Assistance 3,726,087$             
* Major programs


City of Valdez, Alaska
Schedule of State Financial Assistance


Year Ended December 31, 2016


See accompanying notes to the schedule of state financial assistance.
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City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Notes to Schedule of State Financial Assistance  Year Ended December 31, 2016 
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1. Basis of Presentation  
The accompanying schedule of state financial assistance (the “Schedule”) includes the state grant activity of City of Valdez, Alaska under programs of the state government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of City of Valdez, Alaska, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of City of Valdez, Alaska.  Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
2. PERS On-Behalf  The City has recorded $433,952 in PERS on-behalf payments in the schedule of state financial assistance. This represents the PERS relief payments appropriated and transferred into the plan during calendar year 2016 and related to both pension and OPEB contributions.  In the governmental fund financial statements, on-behalf revenue and expenditures have been recognized in their proportional share of payroll within the calendar year under audit.  However, in the full accrual financial statements (the government-wide financial statements), GASB 68 provisions prescribe that on-behalf pension contributions in a special funding situation may only be recognized during the measurement period in which the plan recognizes the contributions. For the City of Valdez, the PERS plan measurement period is July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, creating a six-month timing difference between the cash contribution and revenue and expense recognition for the pension on-behalf by the City in those statements.  As a result of these perspective and timing differences, amounts reported on the government-wide financial statements do not agree to the amount reported on the schedule of state financial assistance.







City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year Ended December 31, 2016 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
     Financial Statements          Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
     Internal control over financial reporting:     Material weakness(es) identified? X yes  no 


Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes  (none reported) 
     Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  yes X no 
     Federal Awards     
     Internal control over major federal programs:     Material weakness(es) identified?  yes X no 


Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes X (none reported) 
     Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified
     Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?  yes X no 
     Identification of major federal programs:     
     CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Agency 
   
10.665 Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster – Schools and Roads – Grants to States Department of Agriculture 
     Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
     Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  yes X no 
     State Financial Assistance     
     Internal control over major state programs:       Material weakness(es) identified?  yes X no 
  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes X none reported 
  Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major state programs: Unmodified
     Dollar threshold used to distinguish a state major program: $ 75,000      







City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued Year Ended December 31, 2016 
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Section II - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
  Finding 2016-001 Capital Outlay and Prepaid Expense – Internal Control over Financial Reporting - Material Weakness   Criteria Government Accounting Standards states management is responsible for ensuring that financial information is reliable and properly reported. Internal controls over financial reporting should allow management to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  Condition Capital outlay and prepaid expense balances were misstated due to a prior year adjusting entry that was mistakenly double booked in the current year.  Context During the preliminary analytical review, a large credit balance to prepaid expense was noted. Upon further review, it was determined that the City had incorrectly adjusted prepaid expense and capital outlay by $758,235 in the General Fund. It appears that the City double posted a prior year adjustment.  Cause Internal controls related to journal entry review and supporting documentation, and monthly financial statements review were not functioning properly.  Effect Overstatement of expense (capital outlay) at the General Fund level, an overstatement of capital assets (construction in progress) at the government-wide level, and an understatement of prepaid expense.    Recommendation Journal entry reviewers should carefully review manual journal entries, assessing the entry for reasonableness based on the nature of the entry being booked and looking for adequate supporting documentation.  View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions 


     Refer to the corrective action plan.     







City of Valdez, Alaska 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued Year Ended December 31, 2016 
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Finding 2016-002 


 Accounts Payable – Internal Control over Financial Reporting – Significant Deficiency  Criteria  Government Accounting Standards states management is responsible for ensuring that financial information is reliable and properly reported. Internal controls over financial reporting should allow management to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  Condition  The accounts payable balance was misstated due to inadequate review of accounts payable cut-off at year-end.  Context During test work, we determined that the City had incorrectly recorded fiscal year 2016 expenditures of $74,357 in the subsequent fiscal year.   Cause Accounts payable and subsequent cash disbursements were not properly reviewed at year-end.   Effect Understatement of liabilities and expenditures.  Recommendation Accounts payable should be carefully detail reviewed to ensure that all liabilities are recorded in the proper year.  View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions Refer to the corrective action plan. 
   


Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 There were no findings and questioned costs for federal awards (as defined in 2 CFR 200.516(a)) that are required to be reported.  


  


Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 There were no findings and questioned costs for State awards (as defined in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits) that are required to be reported.  
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City of Valdez Single Audit Responses (Unaudited) 
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September 11, 2017 
 
Memo from: Brian Carlson, Finance Director 
To:  City Manager, City Council, Finance Staff, BDO Audit Team 
Re:  2016 Audit Findings; Corrective Action Plan 
 
The final 2016 financial audit contains the following findings: 


 
 
So as to eliminate the possibility of recurrence of these specific findings, the following procedures will be 
immediately and formally incorporated into finance department policies and procedures: 
 
Review of Quarterly Internal Financial Statements: 
The City’s accounting records are reconciled and closed each month. Internal quarterly financial 
statements are prepared following the process for the months of March, June, September, and 
December.  These statements are prepared by the Comptroller and Director, and are submitted to City 
Council.   


Quarterly financial statement review emphasizes budget-to-actual figures, and serves primarily as a 
budgetary control and an operational summary for both Council and management.  The material 
weakness referenced in the 2016 audit reflects this budgetary and operational emphasis, as it resulted 
from insufficient review of the balance sheet.  


To address this shortcoming, Finance Director and Comptroller will ensure that a detailed review of 
balance sheets is performed each quarter.  This will be implemented via printing and review of detailed 
ledgers of all balance sheet items, reconciliation of same.  Detailed ledgers and summaries will be signed 
by both parties, and retained according to the City’s adopted records retention schedule.  
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Review of Year-End Payables and Expenditures: 
Upon conclusion of the calendar year, finance staff continues to receive invoices for goods and services 
procured for the concluded year.  With each bi-weekly bill-payment cycle, these invoices are isolated 
from current-year invoices by the accounting staff for additional review and scrutiny by the Comptroller 
and Finance Director, so as to ensure correct posting.  This process continues through the month of 
February, after which time all prior-year invoices are received, paid, and booked, and the concluded year 
is closed. 


Explanations of this process and its deadlines are disseminated to all departments by the accounting 
staff each year, beginning in November.  The significant deficiency noted in the 2016 audit is the result 
of invoices being submitted to Finance Department after the February deadline, despite notice being 
given to departments. This coincided with the hiring of a new department director. 


To mitigate this shortcoming, the Finance Director will increase the regularity of communications to the 
City Manager, department directors and administrative staff by issuing memos via email reminding 
departments of the deadlines pertaining to year-end procurement, and the invoicing requirements for 
same.  These will be issued with each bi-weekly accounts payable processing beginning in November, 
and extending through February. 


In addition, invoices received after the February deadline will be forwarded to the City Manager for 
review and approval prior to payment, thereby enabling the City Manager to impose additional 
corrective action upon department directors who fail to meet this deadline.  
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September 11, 2017 
 
Memo from: Brian Carlson, Finance Director 
To:  City Manager, City Council, Finance Staff, BDO Audit Team 
Re:  2016 Audit Findings; Corrective Action Plan 
 
The final 2016 financial audit contains the following findings: 

 
 
So as to eliminate the possibility of recurrence of these specific findings, the following procedures will be 
immediately and formally incorporated into finance department policies and procedures: 
 
Review of Quarterly Internal Financial Statements: 
The City’s accounting records are reconciled and closed each month. Internal quarterly financial 
statements are prepared following the process for the months of March, June, September, and 
December.  These statements are prepared by the Comptroller and Director, and are submitted to City 
Council.   

Quarterly financial statement review emphasizes budget-to-actual figures, and serves primarily as a 
budgetary control and an operational summary for both Council and management.  The material 
weakness referenced in the 2016 audit reflects this budgetary and operational emphasis, as it resulted 
from insufficient review of the balance sheet.  

To address this shortcoming, Finance Director and Comptroller will ensure that a detailed review of 
balance sheets is performed each quarter.  This will be implemented via printing and review of detailed 
ledgers of all balance sheet items, reconciliation of same.  Detailed ledgers and summaries will be signed 
by both parties, and retained according to the City’s adopted records retention schedule.  
 
 

mailto:BCarlson@ci.valdez.ak.us


 
212 Chenega Ave,  PO Box 307,  Valdez, AK  99686     BCarlson@ci.valdez.ak.us     907.834.3461 

Review of Year-End Payables and Expenditures: 
Upon conclusion of the calendar year, finance staff continues to receive invoices for goods and services 
procured for the concluded year.  With each bi-weekly bill-payment cycle, these invoices are isolated 
from current-year invoices by the accounting staff for additional review and scrutiny by the Comptroller 
and Finance Director, so as to ensure correct posting.  This process continues through the month of 
February, after which time all prior-year invoices are received, paid, and booked, and the concluded year 
is closed. 

Explanations of this process and its deadlines are disseminated to all departments by the accounting 
staff each year, beginning in November.  The significant deficiency noted in the 2016 audit is the result 
of invoices being submitted to Finance Department after the February deadline, despite notice being 
given to departments. This coincided with the hiring of a new department director. 

To mitigate this shortcoming, the Finance Director will increase the regularity of communications to the 
City Manager, department directors and administrative staff by issuing memos via email reminding 
departments of the deadlines pertaining to year-end procurement, and the invoicing requirements for 
same.  These will be issued with each bi-weekly accounts payable processing beginning in November, 
and extending through February. 

In addition, invoices received after the February deadline will be forwarded to the City Manager for 
review and approval prior to payment, thereby enabling the City Manager to impose additional 
corrective action upon department directors who fail to meet this deadline.  
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CHANGE ORDER 
CITY OF VALDEZ 

 
TO:                                                                                                                      
Harris Sand & Gravel 
PO Box 6 
Valdez, AK 99686 
   
       
 
PROJECT:  Valdez Glacier Stream Training  
  Dike and Riprap Revetment 
       
        

DATE  ISSUED:                September 15, 2017 
CHANGE ORDER NO.  1                
COST CODE NO.  310-8060-49542 $48,145.50 
   310-8065-58000 $16,048.50 
PROJECT NO.  17-310-8065 
CONTRACT NO. 1319 
Distribution to: 
      
  Owner   x  
  HS&G   x  
  NRCS   x  

 
You are directed to make the changes in this CONTRACT as follows: Furnish and install the following 
increased quantities: riprap 706 CY ($59,480), earthfill 2,248 CY ($8,992). Provide credit for the decrease in 
quantity for excavation, unclassified 426 CY ($-1,278).  
Justification: Due to changed conditions resulting from the June 28th outburst flood causing a breech of the 
diversion dike upstream of this project, the toe along the new dike has to be made deeper. The survey was completed 
last fall and the design and estimated quantities were based upon the conditions at that time. The outburst flood 
changed the river bed by deepening the channel in some areas and making it shallower in others. This change order 
will account for the changed conditions and allow for work to proceed on schedule. 
 
Not valid until signed by both the Mayor and City Clerk.  Signature of Contractor indicates his agreement herewith, including any adjustment in 
CONTRACT sum or CONTRACT time. 
 
The original CONTRACT sum was .................................................................................. $ 1,311,303.00  
Change by previously authorized Change Order(s) ............................................................ $  0.00  
The CONTRACT sum prior to this Change Order was .................................................... $ 1,311,303.00  
The CONTRACT sum will be increased by this Change Order ........................................ $      64,194.00  
New CONTRACT sum including this Change Order will be ........................................... $ 1,375,497.00  
 
CONTRACT time will remain unchanged.  The date of Final Completion as of the date of this Change Order is 
therefore October 8, 2017. 

 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By:       
 
Date:       
 
 
CORPORATE SEAL 
 
 
 
Attest:       
  Corporate Secretary 

AUTHORIZED BY: 
CITY OF VALDEZ 
 
By:       

Ruth E. Knight, Mayor 
 
Attest:       

Sheri Pierce, City Clerk 
Date:       
 
RECOMMENDED 
 
By:       

Elke Doom, City Manager 
Date:       
 
By:       

Nathan Duval, Capital Facilities Director 
Date:       



Harris Sand and Gravel, Inc. 

P.O. Box 6 Valdez, AK 99686 

Phone:     (907) 835-4756 

Fax:         (907) 835-2049 
 

 

 
September 15th, 2017 

 
 

RE: VALDEZ GLACIER STREAM DIKE AND RIPRAP REVETMENT PROPOSAL 

 

TO:   SCOTT BENDA / CITY OF VALDEZ 

 

As per your request, we propose the following for the changes outlined; 

 

Bid Item 6 - We will use the original bid numbers under Item 6 for additional excavation. 

 

Bid Item 7 - Fill will have to come more from the stockpile now rather than the 

excavation so we will need to add $2.00 for the increased quantity ($4.00 per CY). 

 

Bid Item 9 - The preliminary results of the rock tests we have been doing show the rock 

as being extremely difficult to make to the NRCS spec.  Much more difficult than the 

Corps of Engineers specs.  Because of the stringent specifications, we may be short of the 

planned quantity necessitating more blasting. We will need to add $10.00 per CY for the 

extra rock quantity ($80.00 per CY). 

 
 

 

 

Thanks, 
  

Bill Harris 

President 

Harris Sand & Gravel 

PO Box 6 

Valdez, AK 99686 

& 

 



CITY OF VALDEZ, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION # 17-40 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VALDEZ, 

ALASKA, CALLING ON THE ALASKA CONGRESSIONAL DELEGATION 

TO SUPPORT CONTINUATION AND FULL FUNDING FOR RURAL 

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS. 

WHEREAS, the City of Valdez is located in the Prince William Sound region of 

Alaska and is within the Valdez-Cordova Census Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Valdez economy is based in large part on recreational 

and commercial fishing; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Valdez is a participating supporter of regional community 

and economic development through its participation and partnership with the Prince 

William Sound Economic Development District; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Valdez works with the US Economic Development  

Administration (EDA), USDA-Rural Development, the US Forest Service, and numerous 

other federal and state agencies to foster sustainable community development; and 

WHEREAS, the Prince William Sound region has an unemployment rate of 8.2 

percent*, exceeding state and federal levels by more than three percentage points, 

coupled with a substantially higher cost of living; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska is in a prolonged period of economic recession 

that is projected to continue for several more years, resulting in a smaller state economy 

in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the federal FY 2018 budget proposal titled “America First: A Budget 

Blueprint to Make America Great Again” recommends elimination of the EDA, USDA 

Rural Development, and other programs essential to rural community and economic 

development; and 

WHEREAS, these programs have contributed to Prince William Sound 

communities and the regional economy through investments in common property 

fisheries, a fisheries business incubator, community facilities, port and harbor 

infrastructure, and encouragement of business development and resilience. 

*2016 annualized unemployment rate according to the Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development, 

Research and Analysis Section 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VALDEZ, ALASKA, that 

Section 1. The City Council calls upon the Alaska Congressional Delegation to 

ensure the continuation of the EDA and USDA Rural Development, as well as the 

programs authorized by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act, the HUD 

Community Development Block Grant program, the Denali Commission, the Brownfields 

Program, rural transportation programs, and programs authorized under the current 

Farm Bill.  

Section 2. The City Council urges the delegation to seek continued funding for 

these programs, to the degree practicable, at levels commensurate to federal FY 2017 

funding. 

Section 3. The City Council pledges to continue to work with these federal 

agency partners and programs to ensure a sustainable future for the City of Valdez, 

Alaska.  

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VALDEZ, ALASKA, this 19th day of September, 2017. 

 
CITY OF VALDEZ, ALASKA 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Ruth E. Knight, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sheri L. Pierce, MMC, City Clerk 







CITY AND PORT OF VALDEZ, ALASKA

AUGUST 2017

© Gary Minish

PROJECT  ACHIEVEMENTSCONSTRUCTION 

Phase 1 Uplands Civil Work - Work is complete, except for paving and 

landscaping that were deleted and included with Phase 2 scope of work. 

Phase 2 Uplands Facilities and Inner Harbor Facilities  - Phase 

2 contractor, Pacific Pile & Marine (PPM) and subcontractors, continued 

posting submittals and shop drawings for the R&M design team to review, 

completed designs for the pre-engineered Warehouse building and the East 

Restroom, received full building permits for the warehouse, bilge treatment 

and restroom buildings, completed utility rough-in to the buildings, 

completed the footings and most of the foundations, prepared for floor slabs 

in all buildings, and started laying masonry walls for the restroom. The City 

responded to questions on the Fuel Facility RFP and extended the date for 

submission of proposals.

DESIGN

Phase 2 is a single contract package consisting of Uplands Facilities 

(warehouse building, east restroom, bilge treatment facility, paving and 

landscaping) and Inner Harbor components (removal of in-water rock, 

piling, floats, pedestrian ramps, drive-down bridge and float). R&M received 

approval from USACE for a permit modification to allow PPM’s mechanical 

method for removing in-water rock (instead of blasting). R&M continued: 

reviewing material and shop drawing submittals, responding to Requests for 

Information (RFIs) and clarifications of construction documents, performing 

daily observations of work, testing soil and concrete, and performing special 

inspections for the uplands building construction.

•	 PPM preparing, and R&M reviewing, 
numerous shop drawings for 
construction components 

•	 State Fire Marshall and City issued 
full building permits for the three 
buildings

•	 PPM/subcontractors completed all 
footings and most foundation walls 
for uplands buildings

•	 USACE approved permit modifications 
for PPM’s rock dredging method

•	 PPM’s vendors began fabricating 
mooring floats

Bilge Treatment Building - assembling waste drain pipe 
below slab 



•	 Construct walls and roofs on buildings to 
enclose for interior work during winter

•	 USACE to review and provide WMC’s 
basin survey to the City

•	 Closeout City contract with USACE for 
the dredging and breakwater work

•	 PPM vendors begin fabricating piling, 
pedestrian gangways and drive down 
float components

•	 City to receive and review responses 
to Request for Proposal (RFP) for Fuel 
Facility

FUTURE MILESTONES

Project Website:  http://www.ci.valdez.ak.us/NewHarborProject 

USACE NAVIGATION IMPROVEMENTS

The USACE is administering the Western Marine Construction (WMC) contract 

for dredging the navigation channel and float basin and construction of the 

breakwaters. It appears WMC has completed the dredging and breakwater work 

and they have removed their barges and equipment from the site. The USACE 

is still reviewing WMC’s hydrographic survey and has not announced when the 

City will have access to the new basin. Arcadis has received updated financial 

information from the USACE and continues coordinating for closeout of the 

USACE contract with the City.

AUGUST 2017 PROJECT UPDATE (CONT.)

Laura Langdon, Capital Facilities Project Manager, City of Valdez  || 907.835.5478 ext. 3

Ronnie Barcak, Project Manager, USACE || 907.753.5755

Kim Nielsen, Group Manager, Waterfront Engineering, R&M Consultants  || 907.646.9602

Andy Romine, Project Manager, Pacific Pile and Marine || 907.360.4580

Ron Rozak, Construction Manager, Arcadis  || 907.382.2933

PROJECT TEAM

Restroom - Temporary rock veneer mock-up for City reviewRestroom - backfill prepared for thickened slab at interior walls



Warehouse Building -  plumbing/electrical roughed-in, 
stubbed up for floor slab

Warehouse Building -  plumbing/electrical roughed-in, 
perimeter stem wall formed

Bilge Treatment Building - installing electrical conduit below floor Bilgewater Treatment Building - footings waterproofed, 
prepared for slab

Warehouse Building - assembling waste piping below floor grade Warehouse Building - setting forms for perimeter stem wall



PROJECT SCHEDULE

BUDGET SUMMARY 

* Data includes expenses from 5/22/14 which is the start of Bond eligible costs authorized by COV Resolution 14‐33. $254,321.77 in R&M expenses and other costs are not included.
** Reconciliation with USACE is in process; updates are anticipated.                                                    

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CITY OF VALDEZ WORK
Phase 1 Uplands (Civil work except paving)
Phase 2 * ***

Design/Bid/Award/NTP
Mooring Floats

Fabrication/Delivery
On-site Construction

Drive Down Float 
Fabrication/Delivery
On-site Construction

In-water Rock Removal 
West Rock
East Rock

Uplands Facilities (Warehouse, East Restroom, Bilge Water Bldg.)
Fabrication/Delivery
On-site Construction
Paving/Landscaping

Master Waterfront Plan (To be determined)
Phase 3 Future Facilities (To be determined with Master Plan)

Launch Ramp, Fish Cleaning Station, Wash-Down Pad, W. Restroom
CORPS OF ENGINEERS (USACE) WORK
Harbor Dredging and Breakwater Construction**

*  Solid lines show PPM's preliminary schedule. Dotted lines are Contract defined schedule. 
**  USACE/Western Marine's projected Contract completion. WMC is ahead of schedule.
*** Contract requires work to be completed by October 1st, 2019

Task 2016 2017 2018 2019

* Solid lines show PPM’s preliminary schedule.  Dashed lines are Contract defined schedule.   ** USACE/Western Marine’s projected Contract completion.  WMC is ahead of schedule. 
*** Contract requires Phase 2 work to be completed by October 1, 2019

Description 
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget

Committed
Spent
as of

8/31/17
% Spent

Estimate at 
Completion

DESIGN 2,451,971$         3,659,047$         3,659,047$         2,626,964$        72% 3,624,047$      
Design 1,851,971$         2,215,983$         2,215,983$         2,231,917$        101% 2,180,983$      
Design Team Services During Construction 600,000$             1,443,064$         1,443,064$         395,046$            27% 1,443,064$      
PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,340,548$         2,922,518$         2,922,518$         2,081,394$        71% 2,919,405$      
Project Management 1,740,548$         2,547,868$         2,547,868$         1,709,857$        67% 2,547,868$      
Inspection/Testing 600,000$             374,650$             374,650$             371,537$            99% 371,537$         
USACE CONSTRUCTION ‐ CITY PORTION 9,345,453$         7,645,453$         7,525,453$         5,141,258$        67% 7,645,453$      
Initial Basin 7,145,453$         7,145,453$         7,145,453$         4,761,258$        67% 7,145,453$      
Other Basin Modifications 2,200,000$         500,000$             380,000$             380,000$            76% 500,000$         
CITY CONSTRUCTION 39,023,904$       45,005,957$       44,928,791$       20,290,436$      45% 45,005,957$   
Phase 1 Uplands 19,013,040$       19,636,803$       19,636,803$       19,191,437$      98% 19,636,803$   
Phase 2 Base/Drivedown Floats, Uplands Fac. 8,976,100$         24,912,676$       24,912,676$       796,542$            3% 24,912,676$   
Upland Facilities  (with Phase 2) 4,046,643$         ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    0% ‐$                  
Drive Down Float (with Phase 2) 4,951,721$         ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    0% ‐$                  
Drive‐Down Float In‐water Mods (with Phase 2) 1,342,500$         ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    0% ‐$                  
Hotel Hill Clearing 64,900$               64,900$               64,900$               64,900$              100% 64,900$           
Fish Cleaning 324,000$             ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    0% ‐$                  
Electric Primary 225,000$             311,579$             311,579$             237,557$            76% 311,579$         
CCTV/Security/Head End Equipment 80,000$               80,000$               2,834$                 ‐$                    0% 80,000$           
ADMINISTRATION 60,000$               65,000$               98,826$               80,971$              125% 60,000$           
FFE 100,000$             100,000$             ‐$                     ‐$                    0% 100,000$         
CONTINGENCY (@ 15% original budget) 7,998,281$         1,922,182$         1,965,295$      
TOTAL CITY FUNDED  $      61,320,158   $      61,320,158   $      59,134,636   $     30,221,023  49%  $   61,320,158 

USACE FUNDED**  $      21,277,761   $      21,277,761   $      21,277,761   $     18,905,009  89%  $   21,277,761 

TOTAL CITY/USACE FUNDING  $      82,597,919   $      82,597,919   $      80,412,397   $     49,126,032  59%  $   82,597,919 

* Data includes expenses from 5/22/14 which is the start of Bond eligible costs authorized by COV Resolution 14‐33.   
   $254,321.77 in R&M expenses and other costs are not included.
** Reconciliation with USACE is in process; updates are anticipated.







Mayor’s	Report	–	September	19,	2017	
	
Since	our	last	Council	meeting	on	September	5-	
	

• Latest	news	from	the	Stepping	Stones	Day	Care/Preschool	and	its	temporary	relocation	from	Ms.	Galipeau	is	
they	are	working	with	the	First	Baptist	Church,	the	Fire	Marshall,	and	Childcare	Licensing	to	get	the	final	
inspection	that	will	approve	the	temporary	move.	The	current	location	is	being	remediated	for	the	mold	issue	
that	caused	the	temporary	closure.	

• On	September	6th,	Mr.	Wade	and	I	asked	for	and	had	a	meeting	with	the	City	Manager	and	Community	
Development	regarding	the	current	state	of	the	Septic	Replacement	program.		Councilman	Fleming	was	able	to	
attend	and	it	was	decided	to	have	a	roundtable	discussion,	including	Capital	Facilities,	to	determine	staffing	for	
this	program,	how	to	move	it	forward,	and	how	to	correct	the	errors	made	in	past	installations.	

• I	attended	the	School	Board	meeting	on	September	11.	There	was	discussion	about	he	results	from	the	new	
State	PEAK	assessment,	afterschool	activities,	and	the	continuing	superintendent	search.	

• It	was	very	moving	to	see	the	flag	memorial	on	the	Park	Strip	on	9/11	for	the	first	responders	who	gave	their	all	
on	that	fateful	day	in	2001.		I	want	to	thank	our	fire	department	for	putting	this	memorial	up	every	year.	

• The	overview	meeting	of	the	upcoming	Arctic	Eagle	emergency	preparedness	exercise	was	held	on	the	morning	
of	the	12th.		The	National	Guard	is	coordinating	this	effort	in	several	locations	and	Valdez	is	one	of	them.		They	
will	be	in	town	February	22nd	to	the	25th.		There	will	be	visiting	forces	from	Wyoming,	Colorado,	Connecticut,	
Washington,	Utah,	and	Alaska	who	will	be	working	with	the	USCG,	State,	and	City	to	run	a	disaster	scenario	to	
gauge	how	prepared	we	are	in	event	of	the	real	thing.		The	City	needs	to	come	up	with	objectives	for	this	
exercise	and	relate	them	to	the	State’s	Department	of	Military	and	Veteran	Affairs	by	early	October.		I	will	be	
working	with	the	CM	to	have	this	happen	in	the	near	future.		

• The	Health	Advisory	Council	met	on	the	12th	and	went	over	the	data	gathered	by	the	Community	Health	Needs	
survey	that	was	given	in	May.		Valdez	had	750	people	take	the	survey,	which	is	about	25%	of	our	adult	
population.		This	is	an	amazing	return	for	any	survey.	Many	thanks	again	to	all	who	took	the	time	to	give	their	
opinions	on	the	health	care	needs	of	our	town.		The	top	three	needs	were	identified	as:		access	to	primary	care,	
behavioral	health	and	substance	abuse,	and	availability	of	specialty	care.	Now	the	hospital	administration	and	
board	will	begin	to	devise	a	plan	to	help	meet	these	identified	needs.	

• The	draft	report	for	phase	two	of	the	AMHS	Reform	project	was	released	on	September	13.	Please	follow	the	
link	below	to	view	the	report.	SE	Conference	and	the	project	team	will	be	taking	comments	on	the	report.		
http://www.amhsreform.com/sites/amhsreform.com/files/DRAFT%20AMHS%20Reform%20Phase%202%20Rep
ort_12Sep_1.pdf	

• The	PWSEDD	has	a	new	Executive	Director,	Wanetta	Ayers.	She	has	been	the	interim	director,	has	much	
experience	working	in	Alaska	on	economic	development	issues.		She	is	a	native	of	Alaska	and	is	the	daughter	on	
one	of	the	Air	National	Guard	crew,	Ken	Ayers,	who	lost	his	life	in	the	waters	off	Valdez	after	delivering	
Governor	Egan	here	to	view	the	destruction	from	the	1964	Good	Friday	earthquake.		She	and	her	siblings	
recently	wrote	to	the	Council	to	thank	us	for	working	on	a	way	to	memorialize	this	crew’s	sacrifice.	

• Mike	Wells,	Patience	Anderson-Faulkner,	and	I	have	worked	on	and	recommended	changes	to	the	PWSEDD’s	
By-Laws.		These	will	be	presented	for	adoption	at	the	Special	Membership	meeting	in	November.	

• I	attended	the	PWSRCAC	board	meeting	in	Whittier	on	Thursday	and	Friday,	the	14th	and	15th.		The	major	topic	
of	discussion	was	the	transition	of	the	tanker	escort	services.		

• The	once	in	a	lifetime	Congressional	Gold	Medal	ceremony	was	held	the	evening	of	the	15th	for	the	Civil	Air	
Patrol	officer,	Mr.	Kennedy.		What	an	immense	honor	this	was	and	I	give	my	deepest	thanks	for	his	service	to	
our	country.	

• Don’t	forget	the	2nd	Annual	Confluence	Conference	that	will	be	held	at	the	Civic	Center	September	22.	
	
	

Respectfully	submitted,	

	
Ruthie	Knight,	Mayor	City	of	Valdez	



Note #1: This calendar is subject to change. Contact the City Clerk’s office for updates as needed.                 Updated 09/06/17 
Note #2: City Clerk out week of 9/17 to attend the Oregon Clerks Conference.   
           

September 2017 - City Council Calendar 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 

3 4 
 
Holiday 
 
 
7pm Ports & Harbor 
Commission Meeting 

5 
 
5:30pm – Council Work Session 
(Procurement/Code Revisions) 
 
7pm – Regular Council Meeting 
 

6 
 
 
 
 
7pm – Economic Diversification 
Commission Meeting 
 

7 8 9 

10 11  
 
 
 
6:30pm – School Board 
Meeting 

12 
 
5:30pm – Library Board Meeting (@ Library) 
 
6:30pm – Prov. Health Advisory Council 
Meeting (@ Hospital) 
 
7pm – Parks & Recreation Commission 
Meeting 

13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7pm – Planning & Zoning Commission 
Meeting 
 

14 15 16 

17 18 
 
7pm Ports & Harbor 
Commission Meeting 

19 
 
7pm – Regular Council Meeting 

20 
 
7pm – Joint Work Session with 
Economic Diversification Commission 

21 22 23 

24 25 
 
Noon – Beautification Task 
Force Meeting 
 
6:30pm – School Board 
Meeting 

26 27 
 
 
 
 
7pm – Planning & Zoning Commission 
Meeting 
 

28 
 
 
 
5pm – Parks & 
Rec Commission 
Work Session 

29 30 



Note #1: This calendar is subject to change. Contact the City Clerk’s office for updates as needed.                 Updated 09/07/17 
           

October 2017 - City Council Calendar 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 
 
 
 
7pm Ports & Harbor 
Commission Meeting 

3 
 
5:30pm – Council Work Session 
(Procurement Code Revisions) 
 
7pm – Regular Council Meeting 
 

4 
 
 
 
7pm – Economic 
Diversification 
Commission Meeting 
 

5 
 
 
 
7pm – Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting 
 

6 7 

8 9  
 
 
 
 
6:30pm – School Board 
Meeting 

10 
 
5:30pm – Library Board Meeting (@ 
Library) 
 
6:30pm – Prov. Health Advisory 
Council Meeting (@ Hospital) 
 
7pm – Parks & Recreation 
Commission Meeting 

11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6pm – Council Budget 
Hearing 
 
 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6pm – Council Budget 
Hearing 
 

13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6pm – Council Budget 
Hearing 
 

14 

15 16 
 
 
6pm – Council Budget 
Hearing 
 

17 
 
 
7pm – Regular Council Meeting 

18 
 

Holiday 

19 
 
7pm – Economic 
Diversification Commission 
Meeting 

20 21 

22 23 
 
 
6:30pm – School Board 
Meeting 

24 
 
 
 
7pm Ports & Harbor Commission 
Meeting 

25 
 
 
 
7pm – Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting 
 

26 
 
 
 
 

27 29 

29 30 
 
Noon – Beautification Task 
Force Meeting 
 
6pm – Council Budget 
Hearing 
 

31     



212 Chenega Ave.

Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Meeting Minutes - Final

Parks and Recreation Commission

7:00 PM Council ChambersTuesday, May 9, 2017

Regular Meeting

WORK SESSION AGENDA - 6:00 pm

1. Ports & Harbor Waterfront Master Planning Discussion

REGULAR AGENDA - 7:00 PM

I.      CALL TO ORDER

Chair Smelcer called the regular meeting to order at 7:06 PM.

II.      ROLL CALL

Chair Matt Smelcer

Commission Member Brian Teale

Chair Pro Tempore Rich Loftin

Secretary Gary Pauly

Commission Member Paul Nylund

Senior Administrative Assistant Krystal Moulton

PRCS Director Darryl Verfaillie

Present 7 - 

Commission Member Amy Goold

Commission Member Michael Britt

Recreation Supervisor Wendy Clubb

Park Maintenance Supervisor Marcie Robertson

Events Coordinator Rachel Sensabaugh

Excused 5 - 

III.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes from April 11, 2017

Page 1City of Valdez Printed on 7/12/2017

http://valdez.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1975
http://valdez.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=1974


May 9, 2017Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

MOTION: Secretary Pauly moved, seconded by Chair Pro Tempore Loftin, to approve the 

regular meeting minutes from April 11, 2017, as written. The motion carried by the following 

vote.

The regular meeting minutes from April 11, 2017 were approved as written.

Yays: Chair Smelcer, Commission Member Teale, Chair Pro Tempore Loftin, 

Secretary Pauly, and Commission Member Nylund

5 - 

Excused: Commission Member Goold, Commission Member Britt, Senior Administrative 

Assistant Moulton, PRCS Director Verfaillie, Recreation Supervisor Clubb, 

Park Maintenance Supervisor Robertson, and Events Coordinator 

Sensabaugh

2 - 

IV.      PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

There was no public business from the floor.

V.      NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion Item: Revisit of Trail Dedication Sign

The Commission reviewed the attached survey results.  After review, Commission 

member Teale stated that he agreed with the outcome of those results.  Director 

Verfaillie discussed some of the logistics which needed to take place before ordering a 

sign, and that there would need to be criteria developed, installation location decided 

on, as well as budgeting for purchase in 2018.

Chair Smelcer inquired about whether or not the Commission needed to take action at 

that time.  Verfaillie said that there was no need for immediate action, but that the 

Commission would be presented something at a later date.  After further discussion, it 

was decided that this sign should encompass area trail maps, summer & winter, as 

well as have a designated space for expandable name recognition.

VI.      REPORTS

1. Director Report

Director Verfaillie verbally presented his report.  He discussed upcoming events and 

preparation taking place for Community Cleanup Day, Military Appreciation weekend, 

Bite Back race, Summer Camps, 4th of July festivities, Pink Salmon Festival, Rodeo, 

Page 2City of Valdez Printed on 7/12/2017
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May 9, 2017Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

Carnival and the Summer Art Contest in which all silent auction proceeds would 

benefit the Valdez Avalanche Center.

Chair Smelcer inquired about the Hiking Alaska's Wild "K"ountry program.  Verfaillie 

informed the Commission that this particular program was still taking place annually, 

and had been expanded upon to include hiking, biking, walking and running on the 

designated trails.  

The Commission took a moment to review the 2017 Summer Fun Guide and gave 

kudos to the Parks & Recreation Staff for developing a "world class" publication.

2. Recreation Supervisor Report

The Commission reviewed the Recreation Supervisor's report.  Chair Smelcer inquired 

about how Summer Camp staff interviews were going and whether or not 

programming limitations would need to happen if positions were unable to be filled.  

Verfaillie said that there was always a risk, however, even with low staff numbers, 

Parks & Recreation has always been able to manage by pulling from reserve staff 

resources.

Chair Pro Tempore Loftin emphasized that this year's Alaska Recreation and Park 

Association conference was taking place in Valdez come September.

Verfaillie recognized Commission Member Teale as the winner of the 2017 Snow 

Town Ice Classic.  Commission Member Teale gave thanks.

3. Park Maintenance Supervisor Report

The Commission reviewed the Park Maintenance Supervisor's report.  Chair Smelcer 

inquired about whether or not the summer Park Maintenance Staff had been hired.  

Verfaillie informed the Commission that interviews and hiring was still taking place.  

Verfaillie discussed the current condition of the Luke Horning Memorial Sk8 Park, and 

that it was requested that the area be swept, painted and a dumpster be placed.

Commission Member Brian Teale emphasized the importance of maintaining locks 

and chains on the gates which deter motorized vehicle access into the ski-only areas 

of Mineral Creek Canyon.

VII.      COMMISSION BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR
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May 9, 2017Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

Commission Member Teale discussed the Snow Town Ice Classic.  He again, gave 

thanks, and expressed that he felt it was a great event to raise money for AVV and 

that he hoped it would grow larger in the years to come.

Secretary Pauly discussed the informativeness of the work session which had taken 

place prior to the start of this meeting. Director Verfaillie stated that when it came to 

implementation and development of some of these recreation areas, Parks & 

Recreation would be in need of Commission's support when asking Council for 

additional full time employees. 

Chair Smelcer brought up the current status of the Parks & Recreation Master Plan.  It 

was decided that an additional work session take place on the tentitive date of 

Tuesday, May 30th at 7:00PM, in order to review the red-lined edits.  It was also 

decided that a summary, priority list, as well as a Capital Improvement Project list be 

created to accompany the final document.  Verfaillie suggested adding the Port & 

Harbor Commission's Waterfront Master Plan and the Black Gold Park Strip Master 

Plan as appendices to the document.

VIII.      ADJOURNMENT

Due to no further business, Chair Smelcer adjourned the meeting at 7:53 PM.

Page 4City of Valdez Printed on 7/12/2017



212 Chenega Ave.

Valdez, AK 99686City of Valdez

Meeting Minutes - Final

Parks and Recreation Commission

7:00 PM Council ChambersTuesday, July 11, 2017

Regular Meeting

REGULAR AGENDA - 7:00 PM

I.      CALL TO ORDER

II.      ROLL CALL

Commission Member Brian Teale

Chair Pro Tempore Rich Loftin

Commission Member Amy Goold

Secretary Gary Pauly

Commission Member Michael Britt

Commission Member Paul Nylund

Senior Administrative Assistant Krystal Moulton

PRCS Director Darryl Verfaillie

Recreation Supervisor Wendy Clubb

Present 9 - 

Park Maintenance Supervisor Marcie Robertson

Events Coordinator Rachel Sensabaugh
Excused 2 - 

Chair Matt SmelcerAbsent 1 - 

III.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of regular meeting minutes from May 19, 2017.

MOTION: Commission Member Nylund moved, seconded by Secretary Pauly, to approve the 

regular meeting minutes from May 19, 2017 as written. The motion carried by the following 

vote.

The regular meeting minutes from May 19, 2017 were approved as written.

Yays: Commission Member Teale, Chair Pro Tempore Loftin, Commission Member 

Goold, Secretary Pauly, and Commission Member Nylund

5 - 

Absent: Chair Smelcer, and Commission Member Britt2 - 
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V.      PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

There was no public business from the floor.

VIII.      NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion Item: Master Plan Updating/Editing Strategy

Commission Member Goold started the conversation by expressing her feelings in 

regards to how the most recent work session went.  Goold stated that the Master Plan 

needed to get done and that she felt it to be an ongoing process. Commission 

Member Teale emphasized the tediousness of Commission work and that he felt it 

was good to have everyone's opinions in the editing process due to there being a lot 

of items to discuss.

 

Chair Pro Tempore Loftin suggested setting a deadline in order to have the document 

completed by the end of 2017.  He also suggested scheduling a two hour work 

session in the near future.  Commission Member Nylund agreed with setting a 

deadline, however he was against hosting additional work sessions during the 

Summer months.  

After further discussion, it was decided that additional work sessions be scheduled 

after September 20th, and that the Parks & Recreation Administrative Assistant would 

inquire about which dates were available.

IX.      REPORTS

1. Park Maintenance Supervisor Report

Commission Member Goold made positive comments on the Skate Park 

improvements.  Goold also inquired about the status of the Shoup Playground. 

Director Verfaillie updated the Commission and stated the project build was underway. 

Chair Pro Tempore Loftin commented regarding the "good buzz" from the Skate Park 

improvements as well as the number of activities which had recently taken place.  

Loftin inquired about whether or not the Park Maintenance crew was fully staffed.  

Verfaillie informed the Commission that many of the staff were hired early in the 

season and that the Park Maintenance Department was fully staffed for summer.
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Commission Member Teale discussed the status of trail brushing. Teale also informed 

the Commission of his observations of the Mineral Creek Canyon ski-only area 

improvements, and ephasized the positive impact on trail conditions after the culvert 

installation took place. Teale suggested a fall brush cutting effort so that the early 

snow could be flattened out easily.  Chair Pro Tempore Loftin clarified that any 

volunteer efforts would need to be coordinated directly through Marcie Robertson, the 

Park Maintenance Supervisor. 

2. Recreation Supervisor Report

The Commission reviewed the Recreation Supervisor's report.  Commission Member 

Teale made comment on the recent Bird Ridge bear attack which had taken place in 

Anchorage.  He asked whether or not the Valdez Parks & Recreation Department had 

ever had problems during races and whether or not there was a safety plan in effect 

for local events.  Wendy Clubb, Recreation Supervisor, approached the Commission 

and informed them that yes, they had experienced bears on race routes in the past. 

Clubb went into detail about the safety measures which are taken prior to any race 

which included; incorporating safety checkpoints along the route, driving the route in 

advance to make sure the path is clear, and having the Valdez Police Department and 

Community Safety Officer informed of the event, so that they may respond in a timely 

manner if any incident were to occur.    

Additional discussion took place about the 4th of July Festival.  Commission Member, 

Amy Goold, inquired about whether or not the typical 4th of July fireworks took place.  

Clubb informed the commission that it was decided to cut the 4th of July fireworks 

show due to low visibility.  Parks & Recreation, instead, handed out sparklers and 

goody bags for the kids.  Clubb also stated that the money saved from the 4th of July 

fireworks would be put towards the New Years Eve display.

Chair Pro Tempore Loftin reminded the Commission that the Alaska Recreation and 

Park Association (A.R.P.A.) Conference was coming up.  Commission Member 

Nylund inquired about whether or not there would be a need for volunteers, at which 

time there was no definitive answer.  Director Verfaillie informed the Commission that 

the 2017 A.R.P.A. Conference guest speaker was Iditarod musher, DeeDee Jonrowe. 

Commission Member Teale discussed the Rock Wall and the recent Rock and Flow 

Festival.  Chair Pro Tempore Loftin inquired about the status of the Rock Wall opening 

and whether or not Summer closures would happen annually.  Recreation Supervisor, 

Wendy Clubb, approached the Commission and informed them that in the past, the 

Rock Wall experienced low attendance numbers during Summer months.  Clubb also 

stressed the difficulties in maintaining staff during the summer to operate the facility.  

Loftin felt that with the Rock Wall being closed, it would help promote outdoor 

recreation opportunities.  
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3. Director Report

Director Verfaillie verbally presented his report.  Verfaillie discussed the 4th of July 

Festival, Fireweed 400, Pink Salmon Festival, Shoup Playground build, Summer Art 

Contest and Silent Auction (which the proceeds benefited the Valdez Avalanche 

Center), and Rodeo Alaska - which was coming to Valdez on July 28, 29 and 30.  

Verfaillie went into detail about the Rodeo kids' events which were taking place on 

Friday, July 28th.  

Verfaillie also mentioned, for the 2018 budget, that the Parks & Recreation 

Department was working with Ryan McCune to bring an international wood carving 

contest to Valdez.  

Commission Member Nylund inquired about Parks & Recreation's sound system.  

Further discussion went into the available sound systems for events and that the 

Kelsey Dock was in need of sound system as well.  The Commission was reminded 

that the John Kelsey Plaza was not a Parks & Recreation facility. Verfaillie suggested 

that those who expressed desire in seeing a sound system purchased for the facility 

attend a Capital Improvement Projects meeting and put that in as a recommendation.

X.      COMMISSION BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

Commission Member Nylund brought up the status of Disc Golf Course development.  

Verfaillie informed the Commission that Parks Maintenance had some equipment, but 

they were lacking an appropriate location.  Verfaillie stated that he would email the 

Commission on the status as things progressed, and suggested the Commission 

assist in brainstorming feasible locations that would not impede snow removal.  Chair 

Pro Tempore Loftin asked that a discussion item be added to the next meeting to go 

over the status of equipment and locations.

XI.      ADJOURNMENT

Due to no further business, Chair Pro Tempore Loftin adjourned the meeting at 

7:47PM.
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 Wednesday, July 12, 2017 
 

 7:00 PM 
 

 Regular Meeting 
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 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

REGULAR AGENDA - 7:00 PM 
 

 

 

 

I.      CALL TO ORDER 
 

         The regular meeting was called to order at approximately 7pm. 
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II.      ROLL CALL 
 

 

 Present 5 -  Chair Donald Haase 

 Chair Pro Tempore Jess Gondek 
 Commission Member Brandon Reese 
 Commission Member Kristian Fagerberg 
 Commission Member Roger Kipar 
 Excused 2 -  Commission Member Harold Blehm 

 Commission Member Victor Weaver 
 Also Present 3 -  Administrative Assistant Sue Moeller 

 Director AnnMarie Lain 
 Sr. GIS Planning Tech Paul Nylund 
                                   Sr. Planner Rochelle Rollenhagen 

 

III.     APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

       MOTION: To approve the Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of June  

          28, 2017. 
 

 P&Z Commission Meeting Minutes 062817 Regular Meeting 
 
 
            MOTION: Commissioner Kipar moved, seconded by Commissioner Fagerberg, to approve the regular  

           meeting minutes of June 28, 2017. 

 

           The regular meeting minutes from June 28, 2017 were approved as written. 
 

  
 
IV.     NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of a Recommendation to City Council to Grant a Public Utility 
Easement to GCI Cable INC. Located on City of Valdez Property within section 
30, T8S, R6W, C.R.M., AK. The Trenching and subsequent Laying of 
Cable/Conduit will be located 10’-12’ East of the Edge of the Existing 
Recreational Trail. 
 

          MOTION: Commissioner Gondek moved, seconded by Commissioner Reese to approve the motion to 

approve a Recommendation to the City Council. The motion carried by the following vote after the 

following discussion occurred. 

 

   GCI Easement Draft2 7 4 2017 (3) 

 

         Commission Haase asked staff if moving the trenching to the east was a requirement of the  

         Easement. Director Lain responded that the management document with FEMA regarding maintenance of 

the dikes prohibits digging into the dikes, thus the move to the east.  

 

          VOTE ON THE MOTION: 

 
 
 Yays: 5 -  Chair Haase, Chair Pro Tempore Gondek, Commission Member Reese,  

 Commission Member Fagerberg, and Commission Member Kipar 
 
 Excused: 2 -  Commission Member Blehm, and Commission Member Weaver 
 
 
 

http://valdez.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45d0e0c827fd4a49ab97a8bba30d8d56.docx
http://valdez.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d76fa2df03074181a04bc721c7a47844.pdf
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V.      COMMISSION BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
 Commissioner Kipar apologized for missing so many meetings. The Commissioner was 

encouraging to Ms. Lain for continuing to work on the abatement on Gulkana Street. Ms. Lain stated that 

there has been an appeal submitted for the Gulkana abatement, and that it should be before the Planning 

& Zoning Commission at the next meeting. Commissioner Kipar asked if Ms. Lain intended to continue with 

processing abatements; Ms. Lain responded in the affirmative. 
 

  
VI.     ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, Commissioner Haase adjourned the meeting at 7:15pm. 
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